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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements
ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per-share data)
February 28, August 31,
2009 2008
(unaudited)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72310 $ 297,096
Accounts receivable, less reserve for doubtful accounts of $1,500 at February 28, 2009 and $1,640 at August 31, 2008 215,883 268,971
Inventories 165,333 145,725
Deferred income taxes 23,949 18,251
Prepayments and other current assets 31,956 26,104
Total Current Assets 509,431 756,147
Property, Plant, and Equipment, at cost:
Land 6,590 9,501
Buildings and leasehold improvements 108,430 126,450
Machinery and equipment 330,070 334,641
Total Property, Plant, and Equipment 445,090 470,592
Less — Accumulated depreciation and amortization 306,433 309,086
Property, Plant, and Equipment, net 138,657 161,506
Other Assets:
Goodwill 373,335 342,306
Intangible assets 126,878 129,319
Deferred income taxes 2,281 2,226
Other long-term assets 19,279 17,187
Total Other Assets 521,773 491,038
Total Assets $1,169,861  $1,408,691
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 159,622 $ 205,776
Current maturities of long-term debt — 159,983
Accrued compensation 41,221 67,463
Other accrued liabilities 78,187 89,344
Total Current Liabilities 279,030 522,566
Long-Term Debt 203,965 203,953
Accrued Pension Liabilities, less current portion 25,943 26,686
Deferred Income Taxes 22,676 23,983
Self-Insurance Reserves, less current portion 9,477 8,853
Other Long-Term Liabilities 47,778 47,104
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 8)
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; none issued — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized; 49,807,424 issued and 40,319,724 outstanding at
February 28, 2009; and 49,689,408 issued and 40,201,708 outstanding at August 31, 2008 498 497
Paid-in capital 640,311 626,435
Retained earnings 389,589 366,904
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (53,935) (22,819)
Treasury stock, at cost, 9,487,700 shares at February 28, 2009 and 9,487,700 at August 31, 2008 (395,471) (395,471)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 580,992 575,546
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $1,169,861 $1,408,691

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per-share data)

Net Sales

Cost of Products Sold

Gross Profit

Selling, Distribution, and Administrative Expenses
Special Charge

Operating Profit

Other Expense (Income):
Interest expense, net
Miscellaneous expense (income), net

Total Other Expense

Income from Continuing Operations before Provision for Income Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes

Income from Continuing Operations
Income from Discontinued Operations
Net Income

Earnings Per Share:
Basic Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations
Basic Earnings per Share from Discontinued Operations
Basic Earnings per Share
Basic Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding
Diluted Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations
Diluted Earnings per Share from Discontinued Operations
Diluted Earnings per Share
Diluted Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding
Dividends Declared per Share

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
February 28, February 29, February 28, February 29,
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ 386,139 $ 482,584 $ 838,164 $ 991,449

244,741 290,548 522,041 596,224
141,398 192,036 316,123 395,225
108,217 131,307 227,143 264,952
4,568 — 26,630 14,638
28,613 60,729 62,350 115,635
7,508 7,107 15,510 14,101

27) 192 (4,208) (116)
7,481 7,299 11,302 13,985
21,132 53,430 51,048 101,650
6,764 19,286 17,266 36,581
14,368 34,144 33,782 65,069
— — — 147
$ 14,368 $ 34,144 $ 33,782 $ 65,216
$ 0.36 $ 0.84 $ 0.84 $ 1.58
— — — 0.00
$ 0.36 $ 0.84 $ 0.84 $ 1.58
40,200 40,446 40,073 41,164
$ 0.35 $ 0.82 $ 0.83 $ 1.54
— — — 0.00
$ 0.35 $ 0.82 $ 0.83 $ 1.55
40,784 41,475 40,732 42,124
$ 0.13 $ 0.13 $ 0.26 $ 0.28
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ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Six Months Ended
February 28, February 29,
2009 2008
Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Net income $ 33,782 $ 65,216
Less: Income from Discontinued Operations — 147
Income from Continuing Operations 33,782 65,069
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 17,425 16,592
Excess tax benefits from share-based payments (570) (4,194)
Gain on the sale or disposal of property, plant, and equipment (29) (16)
Impairments 1,558 —
Deferred income taxes (6,615) (1,153)
Other non-cash items 3,464 512
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions, divestitures and foreign currency:
Accounts receivable 46,766 24,774
Inventories (21,900) (114)
Prepayments and other current assets (1,448) 4,078
Accounts payable (44,464) (31,179)
Other current liabilities (37,432) (27,710)
Other 5,594 8,912
Net Cash (Used for) Provided by Operating Activities (3,869) 55,571
Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (11,736) (14,612)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment 128 95
Acquisitions (31,385) —
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (42,993) (14,517)
Cash Provided by (Used for) Financing Activities:
Repayments of long-term debt (160,000) “4)
Employee stock purchase plan issuances 261 316
Stock options exercised 2,412 2,654
Repurchases of common stock — (130,686)
Excess tax benefits from share-based payments 570 4,194
Dividend received from Zep Inc. — 62,500
Dividends paid (10,643) (11,786)
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (167,400) (72,812)
Cash flows from Discontinued Operations:
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities — 799
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities — (410)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Financing Activities — 970
Net Cash Provided by Discontinued Operations — 1,359
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash (10,524) 1,791
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (224,786) (28,608)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 297,096 213,674
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 72,310 $ 185,066
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Income taxes paid during the period $ 29,119 $ 52,566
Interest paid during the period $ 16,318 $ 17,749

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per-share data and as indicated)

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Acuity Brands, Inc. (“Acuity Brands”) is the parent company of Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. and other subsidiaries (collectively referred to herein as the
“Company”). The Company designs, produces, and distributes a broad array of indoor and outdoor lighting fixtures and related products and services for
commercial and institutional, industrial, infrastructure, and residential applications for various markets throughout North America and select international
markets.

Acuity Brands completed the spin-off of its specialty products business (the “Spin-off”), Zep Inc. (“Zep”), on October 31, 2007, by distributing all of the
shares of Zep common stock, par value $.01 per share, to Acuity Brands’ stockholders of record as of October 17, 2007. Acuity Brands’ stockholders received
one Zep share, together with an associated preferred stock purchase right, for every two shares of the Company’s common stock they owned. Stockholders
received cash in lieu of fractional shares for amounts less than one full Zep share.

As aresult of the Spin-off, the Company’s financial statements have been prepared with the results of operations and cash flows of the specialty products
business presented as discontinued operations. All historical statements have been restated to conform to this presentation. Refer to Note 2 — Discontinued
Operations.

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared by Acuity Brands in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of Acuity Brands. These interim consolidated financial statements
reflect all normal and recurring adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to present fairly Acuity Brands’ consolidated financial position
as of February 28, 20009, its consolidated results of operations for the three and six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, and its consolidated
cash flows for the six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in Acuity Brands’
annual financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted. However, Acuity Brands
believes that the disclosures included herein are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. These financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements of Acuity Brands as of and for the three years ended August 31, 2008 and notes thereto included in
Acuity Brands’ Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 27, 2008 (File No. 001-16583) (“Form 10-K”).

The results of operations for the six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for
the full fiscal year because the net sales and net income of Acuity Brands historically have been higher in the second half of its fiscal year and because of the
continued uncertainty of general economic conditions impacting the key end markets of the Company for the remainder of fiscal year 2009.

2. Discontinued Operations

As described in Note 1 — Description of Business and Basis of Presentation, Acuity Brands completed the Spin-off on October 31, 2007. A summary of the
operating results for the discontinued operations is as follows:

Six Months Ended

February 29, 2008

Net Sales $ 97,755
Income before Provision for Income Taxes $ 2,946
Provision for Income Taxes 2,799
Net Income from Discontinued Operations $ 147

In conjunction with the Spin-off, Acuity Brands and Zep entered into various agreements that address the allocation of assets and liabilities between them
and that define their relationship after the separation, including a distribution agreement, a tax disaffiliation agreement, an employee benefits agreement, and a
transition services agreement. Pursuant to the distribution agreement, Zep drew on its financing arrangements and paid a $58.4 million net dividend to Acuity
Brands during fiscal 2008. Information regarding guarantees and indemnities related to the Spin-off are included in Note 8 — Commitments and Contingencies.
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3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Through multiple acquisitions, Acuity Brands acquired intangible assets consisting primarily of trademarks associated with specific products with finite
lives and distribution networks which are amortized over their estimated useful lives of 30 years. Other acquired definite lived intangible assets consist primarily
of patented technology that is amortized over its estimated useful life of 12 years and customer relationships that are amortized over their estimated useful lives of
5 years. Indefinite lived intangible assets consist of trade names that are expected to generate cash flows indefinitely. The Company tests indefinite lived
intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently as facts and circumstances change, as required by Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Due to recent declines in the Company’s revenues and cash flows as well as downturns in
key served markets, the Company performed an interim test for impairment of indefinite lived intangible assets as of February 28, 2009. The most recent analysis
did not result in the recognition of an impairment charge.

The Company recorded amortization expense of $1.3 million and $0.8 million related to intangible assets with finite lives during the three months ended
February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively. The Company recorded amortization expense of $2.4 million and $1.9 million related to intangible assets
with finite lives during the six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively. Amortization expense is expected to be approximately $4.7
million in fiscal years 2009, 2010, and 2011; $3.7 million in fiscal year 2012; and $2.9 million in fiscal year 2013. The decrease in expected amortization expense
in fiscal year 2012 is due to the completion of the amortization of acquired patented technology assets during fiscal year 2011. The decrease in fiscal year 2013 is
due to the completion of the amortization of the acquired customer relationships during fiscal year 2012. Included in these amounts are the estimated impact of
incremental amortization expense for the December 31, 2008 acquisition of Lighting Control & Design, Inc. (“LC&D”) (refer to Note 13 — Acquisitions). These
estimates are subject to change as the Company finalizes the purchase price allocation for LC&D. Additionally, if the Company completes the proposed
acquisition of Sensor Switch, Inc. (refer to Note 15 — Subsequent Events), amortization expense will increase as a result of the associated purchase price
allocation to intangible assets with finite lives. The amount of the increase has not been determined at this time.

The Company tests goodwill for impairment on an annual basis in the fiscal fourth quarter or sooner if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of goodwill may exceed its fair value. The goodwill impairment test has two steps. The first step identifies potential impairments by comparing
the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying value, including goodwill. The fair values are determined based on a combination of valuation techniques
including the expected present value of future cash flows, a market multiple approach, and a comparable transaction approach. If the fair value of a reporting unit
exceeds the carrying value, goodwill is not impaired and the second step is not necessary. If the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds the fair value, the
second step calculates the possible impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of goodwill with the carrying value. If the implied fair value of the
goodwill is less than the carrying value, an impairment charge is recorded. Due to recent declines in the Company’s revenues and cash flows as well as downturns
in key served markets, the Company performed an interim test for impairment of goodwill as of February 28, 2009. The most recent analysis did not result in the
recognition of an impairment charge. The carrying value of goodwill in the current period was adjusted for the preliminary allocation of goodwill for the LC&D
acquisition of approximately $35.2 million and the negative effect of foreign currency translation of approximately $4.2 million.

4. Inventories

Inventories include materials, direct labor, and related manufacturing overhead. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (on a first-in, first-out or average
cost basis) or market and consist of the following:

February 28, August 31,
2009 2008
Raw materials and supplies $ 73,693 $ 66,919
Work in process 11,734 12,508
Finished goods 89,239 76,470
174,666 155,897
Less: Reserves (9,333) (10,172)
$ 165,333 $145,725
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5. Earnings per share

The Company computes earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share. Under this statement, basic earnings per share is
computed by dividing net earnings available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed similarly but reflects the potential dilution that would occur if dilutive options were exercised and restricted stock awards were
vested. The following table calculates basic and diluted earnings per common share for the three and six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008:

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations:
Income from continuing operations
Basic weighted average shares outstanding

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations:
Income from continuing operations
Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Common stock equivalents (stock options and restricted stock)
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations
Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations

Diluted earnings per share:
Income from discontinued operations
Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Common stock equivalents (stock options and restricted stock)

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations

6. Comprehensive Income

The Company accounts for comprehensive income as prescribed by SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. SFAS No. 130 requires the
reporting of a measure of all changes in equity that result from recognized transactions and other economic events other than transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners. Other comprehensive income includes foreign currency translation adjustments. The calculation of comprehensive income is as follows:

Income from Continuing Operations
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Comprehensive income from continuing operations

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

February 28, February 29, February 28, February 29,
2009 2008 2009 2008

$ 14,368 $ 34,144 $ 33,782 $ 65,069
40,200 40,446 40,073 41,164
$ 0.36 $ 0.84 $ 0.84 $ 1.58
$ 14,368 $ 34,144 $ 33,782 $ 65,069
40,200 40,446 40,073 41,164
584 1,029 659 960
40,784 41,475 40,732 42,124
$ 0.35 $ 0.82 $ 0.83 $ 1.54
$ $ 147
40,446 41,164
5 — 5000
$ — $ 147
40,446 41,164
1,029 960
41,475 42,124
$ — $ 0.00

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
February 28, February 29, February 28, February 29,

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ 14,368 $ 34,144 $ 33,782 $ 65,069
(6,819) 2,350 (31,131) 6,578
$ 7,549 $ 36,494 $ 2,651 $ 71,647
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Foreign currency translation adjustments for the three and six months ended February 28, 2009 resulted primarily from the strengthening of the U.S. dollar
against certain currencies, particularly the British Pound, the Mexican Peso, the Canadian Dollar and the Euro. Foreign currency translation adjustments for the
three and six months ended February 29, 2008 resulted primarily from the weakening of the U.S. dollar against certain currencies, particularly the Canadian
Dollar and the Euro.

7. Debt

On October 19, 2007, Acuity Brands executed a $250 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit Facility
matures in October 2012 and contains financial covenants including a minimum interest coverage ratio and a leverage ratio (“Maximum Leverage Ratio) of total
indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization expense), as such terms are defined in the Revolving Credit Facility
agreement. These ratios are computed at the end of each fiscal quarter for the most recent 12-month period. The Revolving Credit Facility allows for a Maximum
Leverage Ratio of 3.50, subject to certain conditions defined in the financing agreement. The Company was in compliance with all financial covenants and had no
outstanding borrowings at February 28, 2009 under the Revolving Credit Facility. At February 28, 2009, the Company had additional borrowing capacity under
the Revolving Credit Facility of $241.3 million under the most restrictive covenant in effect at the time, which represents the full amount of the Revolving Credit
Facility less outstanding letters of credit of $8.7 million discussed below.

At February 28, 2009, Acuity Brands had outstanding letters of credit totaling $12.9 million, primarily for the purpose of securing collateral requirements
under the casualty insurance programs for Acuity Brands and for providing credit support for the Company’s industrial revenue bond. At February 28, 2009, a
total of $8.7 million of the letters of credit were issued under the Revolving Credit Facility, thereby reducing the total availability under the facility by such
amount.

Debt is primarily comprised of fixed income securities consisting of $200 million in publicly traded notes that are scheduled to mature in August 2010.
Additionally, Acuity Brands maintains approximately $4.0 million in a tax-exempt industrial revenue bond that matures in 2021. Further discussion of Acuity
Brands’ debt is included within Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within the Company’s Form 10-K.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2009, Acuity Brands commenced a cash tender offer to purchase any and all of its outstanding $160 million 6% notes
due 2009 (the “Notes”) at a discounted price of $990.00 per $1,000.00. The tender offer expired on December 9, 2008. $12,637,000 in aggregate principal amount
of the Notes, representing approximately 7.9% of the outstanding Notes, were validly tendered in the offer. The total consideration plus the applicable accrued
and unpaid interest was paid to the tendering holders on the settlement date, December 10, 2008. The gain, net of expenses, was immaterial. The remaining
$147.4 million of the Notes matured in February 2009 and Acuity Brands repaid the outstanding balance with cash on hand.

Interest expense, net, is comprised primarily of interest expense on debt, Revolving Credit Facility borrowings, and obligations in connection with non-
qualified retirement plans, partially offset by interest income on cash and cash equivalents. Interest expense, net for continuing operations decreased during fiscal
2009 due primarily to lower interest income as a result of lower interest rates and lower cash balances partially offset by lower interest expense due to lower debt
outstanding. Interest expense, net related to discontinued operations was $0.3 million for the six months ended February 29, 2008.

The following table summarizes the components of interest expense, net:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
February 28, February 29, February 28, February 29,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest expense for continuing operations $ 7,681 $ 8,659 $ 16,386 $ 17,737
Interest income for continuing operations (173) (1,552) (876) (3,636)
Interest expense, net $ 7,508 $ 7,107 $ 15,510 $ 14,101




Table of Contents

8. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

Acuity Brands is subject to various legal claims arising in the normal course of business, including patent infringement and product liability claims. Acuity
Brands is self-insured up to specified limits for certain types of claims, including product liability, and is fully self-insured for certain other types of claims,
including employment practices, environmental, product recall, and patent infringement. Based on information currently available, it is the opinion of
management that the ultimate resolution of pending and threatened legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows of Acuity Brands. However, in the event of unexpected future developments, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of any such
matters, if unfavorable, could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows of Acuity Brands in future periods.
Acuity Brands establishes reserves for legal claims when the costs associated with the claims become probable and can be reasonably estimated. The actual costs
of resolving legal claims may be substantially higher or lower than the amounts reserved for such claims. However, the Company cannot make a meaningful
estimate of actual costs to be incurred that could possibly be higher or lower than the amounts reserved.

Environmental Matters

The operations of the Company are subject to numerous comprehensive laws and regulations relating to the generation, storage, handling, transportation,
and disposal of hazardous substances as well as solid and hazardous wastes and to the remediation of contaminated sites. In addition, permits and environmental
controls are required for certain of the Company’s operations to limit air and water pollution, and these permits are subject to modification, renewal, and
revocation by issuing authorities. On an ongoing basis, Acuity Brands invests capital and incurs operating costs relating to environmental compliance.
Environmental laws and regulations have generally become stricter in recent years. The cost of responding to future changes may be substantial. Acuity Brands
establishes reserves for known environmental claims when the costs associated with the claims become probable and can be reasonably estimated. The actual cost
of environmental issues may be substantially higher or lower than that reserved due to difficulty in estimating such costs.

Guarantees and Indemnities

Acuity Brands is a party to contracts entered into in the normal course of business in which it is common for it to agree to indemnify third parties for
certain liabilities that may arise out of or relate to the subject matter of the contract. In most cases, Acuity Brands cannot estimate the potential amount of future
payments under these indemnities until events arise that would result in a liability under the indemnities. In connection with the sale of assets and the divestiture
of businesses, Acuity Brands has from time to time agreed to indemnify the purchaser from liabilities relating to events occurring prior to the sale and conditions
existing at the time of the sale. The indemnities generally include potential environmental liabilities, general representations and warranties concerning the asset
or business, and certain other liabilities not assumed by the purchaser. Indemnities associated with the divestiture of a business are generally limited in amount to
the sales price of the specific business or are based on a lower negotiated amount and expire at various times, depending on the nature of the indemnified matter,
but in some cases do not expire until the applicable statute of limitations expires. Acuity Brands does not believe that any amounts that it may be required to pay
under these indemnities will be material to its results of operations, financial position, or cash flow.

In conjunction with the separation of their businesses (the “Distribution”), Acuity Brands and Zep entered into various agreements that addressed the
allocation of assets and liabilities and defined Acuity Brands’ relationship with Zep after the Distribution, including a distribution agreement and a tax
disaffiliation agreement. The distribution agreement provides that Acuity Brands will indemnify Zep for liabilities related to the businesses that comprise Acuity
Brands. The tax disaffiliation agreement provides that Acuity Brands will indemnify Zep for certain taxes and liabilities that may arise related to the Distribution
and, generally, for deficiencies, if any, with respect to federal, state, local, or foreign taxes of Zep for periods before the Distribution. Liabilities determined under
the tax disaffiliation agreement terminate upon the expiration of the applicable statutes of limitation for such liabilities. There is no stated maximum potential
liability included in the tax disaffiliation agreement or the distribution agreement. Acuity Brands does not believe that any amounts it is likely to be required to
pay under these indemnities will be material to its results of operations, financial position, or liquidity. Acuity Brands cannot estimate the potential amount of
future payments under these indemnities because claims that would result in a liability under the indemnities are not fully known.

Product Warranty and Recall Costs

Acuity Brands records an allowance for the estimated amount of future warranty claims when the related revenue is recognized, primarily based on
historical experience of identified warranty claims. Excluding costs related to faulty components provided by third parties, warranty costs as a percentage of net
sales have generally been consistent for the last several years. However, there can be no assurance that future warranty costs will not exceed historical experience.
If actual future warranty costs exceed historical amounts, additional allowances may be required, which could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s
results of operations and cash flows in future periods.
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The changes in product warranty and recall reserves during the six months ended February 28, 2009 are summarized as follows:

Balance at August 31, 2008 $ 4,888
Adjustments to the warranty and recall reserve 1,790
Payments made during the period (2,048)
Balance at February 28, 2009 $ 4,630

9. Share-Based Payments

Acuity Brands accounts for share-based payments as prescribed by SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, which requires the measurement
and recognition of compensation expense for share-based payment awards made to Acuity Brands’ employees and directors including stock options and restricted
shares (all part of the Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan), and share units representing certain deferrals into the
Director Deferred Compensation Plan or the Supplemental Deferred Savings Plan. The Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan was frozen effective January
2007. Each of these award programs are more fully discussed within the Acuity Brands’ Form 10-K. The Company recorded $3.5 million and $3.3 million of
share-based expense for the three months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively. The Company recorded $6.9 million and $6.1 million of
share-based expense for the six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively, excluding the acceleration of certain share-based expense
as a result of employee terminations recorded as part of the 2008 Special Charge (See Note 11 — Special Charges). The total income tax benefit recognized in the
income statement for share-based compensation arrangements was $0.6 million and $4.2 million for the six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29,
2008, respectively.

10. Pension Plans

Acuity Brands has several pension plans, both qualified and non-qualified, covering certain hourly and salaried employees. Benefits paid under these plans
are based generally on employees’ years of service and/or compensation during the final years of employment. Acuity Brands makes annual contributions to the
plans to the extent indicated by actuarial valuations. The Company expects to contribute approximately $3.8 million during fiscal year 2009 to fund its defined
benefit plans. Plan assets are invested primarily in equity and fixed income securities.

Net periodic pension cost for the Company’s pension plans during the three and six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008 included the
following components:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
February 28, February 29, February 28, February 29,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Service cost $ 637 $ 721 $ 1,273 $ 1,442
Interest cost 2,173 2,100 4,345 4,200
Expected return on plan assets (2,346) (2,579) (4,692) (5,158)
Amortization of prior service cost 7 6 15 12
Recognized actuarial loss 441 313 882 626
Net periodic pension cost $ 912 $ 561 $ 1,823 $ 1,122
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11. Special Charges
Fiscal 2009 Special Charge

On October 6, 2008, Acuity Brands announced plans to accelerate its ongoing programs to streamline operations including the consolidation of certain
manufacturing facilities and the reduction of certain overhead costs. These actions will allow Acuity Brands to better leverage efficiencies in its supply chain and
support areas, while funding continued investments in other areas that support future growth opportunities. As a result of these actions, Acuity Brands recorded a
pre-tax charge of $4.6 million, or $0.07 per diluted share, during the second quarter of fiscal 2009 related to estimated severances and employee benefits related
to further reductions in workforce as well as estimated retention payments related to the previously announced consolidation of certain manufacturing operations.
During the first six months of fiscal 2009, Acuity Brands recorded a pre-tax charge of $26.6 million, or $0.41 per diluted share. The $26.6 million pre-tax charge
consists of $25.0 million for estimated severances and employee benefits as well as estimated retention payments related to the previously announced
consolidation of certain manufacturing operations and reductions in workforce and $1.6 million impairment of assets related to the closing of a manufacturing
facility. The changes in the reserves related to the 2009 program during the six months ended February 28, 2009 are summarized as follows:

Severance
Balance as of August 31, 2008 $ —
Special charge 24,921
Payments made during the period (7,027)
Balance as of February 28, 2009 $17,894

Fiscal 2008 Special Charge

During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, Acuity Brands announced plans to eliminate, as a result of the Spin-off, certain corporate costs previously incurred.
Additionally, Acuity Brands announced plans to streamline and simplify its operations. In the quarter ended November 30, 2007, the Company recorded a pre-tax
charge of $14.6 million, or $0.21 per diluted share (including $0.8 million pre-tax related to share-based expense due to the modification of the terms of
agreements to accelerate vesting for certain terminated employees) related to these planned actions to reflect severance and related employee benefit costs
associated with the elimination of certain positions worldwide and the estimated costs associated with the early termination of certain leases.

The changes in the reserves related to these programs during the six months ended February 28, 2009 are summarized as follows:

Severance Exit Costs
Balance as of August 31, 2008 $ 3,409 $ 1,848
Special charge (120) 144
Payments made during the period (1,729) (556)
Balance as of February 28, 2009 $ 1,560 $ 1,436

12



Table of Contents

12. Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, (“SFAS No. 157”), Acuity Brands determines a fair value measurement based on the
assumptions a market participant would use in pricing an asset or liability. SFAS No. 157 established a three-tiered hierarchy making a distinction between market
participant assumptions based on (i) observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets (Level 1), (ii) inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that
are observable either directly or indirectly (Level 2), and (iii) unobservable inputs that require Acuity Brands to use present value and other valuation techniques
in the determination of fair value (Level 3). The following table presents information about assets and liabilities required to be carried at fair value on a recurring
basis as of February 28, 2009:

Fair Value Measurements
as of February 28, 2009 using:

Quoted Market Significant
Prices in Active Other Significant
Fair Value as of Markets for Identical Observable Unobservable
February 28, Assets Inputs Inputs
2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets:
Long-term investments (1) $ 3,739 $ 3,739 $ — $ —
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation plan liability (2) $ 3,739 $ 3,739 $ — $ —

(1)  Acuity Brands maintains certain investments that generate returns that offset changes in certain liabilities related to deferred compensation arrangements.
The investments primarily consist of marketable equity securities and fixed income securities.

(2)  Acuity Brands maintains a self-directed, non-qualified deferred compensation plan structured as a rabbi trust primarily for certain retired executives and
other highly compensated employees. The related deferred compensation liability represents the fair value of the investment assets.

13. Acquisitions

On December 31, 2008, Acuity Brands acquired for cash and stock substantially all the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Lighting Control & Design,
Inc. (“LC&D”). LC&D, located in Glendale, California, is a manufacturer of comprehensive digital lighting controls and software. LC&D offers a breadth of
products, ranging from dimming and building interfaces to digital thermostats, all within a single, scalable system. LC&D had calendar year 2008 sales of
approximately $18 million. The operating results of LC&D have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.
Management continues to gather additional information about the fair value of LC&D’s acquired assets and liabilities. Accordingly, the purchase price allocation
amounts reflected in the Company’s financial statements are preliminary, including those amounts recorded as intangible assets, and could change as the purchase
price allocation is finalized. Pro forma results and other expanded disclosures required by SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, have not been presented as the
purchase of LC&D does not represent a material acquisition.

14. New Accounting Standards
Accounting Standards Yet to Be Adopted

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS No. 141R”).
SFAS No. 141R changes accounting for business combinations through a requirement to recognize 100% of the fair values of assets acquired, liabilities assumed,
and noncontrolling interests in acquisitions of less than a 100% controlling interest when the acquisition constitutes a change in control of the acquired entity.
Other requirements include capitalization of acquired in-process research and development assets, expensing, as incurred, acquisition-related transaction costs and
capitalizing restructuring charges as part of the acquisition only if requirements of SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities, are met. SFAS No. 141R is effective for business combination transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and is therefore effective for the Company beginning in fiscal year 2010. The implementation of this
guidance will affect the Company’s results of operations and financial position after its effective date only to the extent it completes applicable business
combinations subsequent to the effective date, and therefore, the impact can not be determined at this time.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS
No. 160”). SFAS No. 160 establishes the economic entity concept of consolidated financial statements, stating that holders of residual economic interest in an
entity have an equity interest in the entity, even if the residual interest is related to only a portion of the entity. Therefore, SFAS No. 160 requires a noncontrolling
interest to be presented as a separate component of equity. SFAS No. 160 also states that once control is obtained, a change in control that does not result in a loss
of control should be accounted for as an equity transaction. The statement requires that a change resulting in a loss of control and deconsolidation is a significant
event triggering gain or loss recognition and the establishment of a new fair value basis in any remaining ownership interests. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and is therefore effective for the Company beginning in fiscal year 2010. The Company does not expect the
adoption of SFAS No. 160 to have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

Accounting Standards Adopted in Fiscal 2009

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159
permits companies, at their election, to measure specified financial instruments and warranty and insurance contracts at fair value on a contract-by-contract basis,
with changes in fair value recognized in earnings each reporting period. The election, called the “fair value option,” will enable some companies to reduce the
volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently, and it is easier than using the complex hedge-accounting requirements
in SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS No. 133”), to achieve similar results. Subsequent changes in fair value
for designated items will be required to be reported in earnings in the current period. SFAS No. 159 was effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007 and was therefore effective for the Company beginning in fiscal year 2009. The Company adopted SFAS No. 159 on
September 1, 2008 and elected not to apply the fair value option, and therefore, the adoption did not have an impact on the Company’s results of operations or
financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment
of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) (“SFAS No. 158”). SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to: (a) recognize in its statement of financial position
the funded status of a benefit plan; (b) measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year (with limited exceptions);
and (c) recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise but are not recognized
as components of net periodic benefit costs pursuant to prior existing guidance. The provisions governing recognition of the funded status of a defined benefit
plan and related disclosures became effective and were adopted by the Company at the end of fiscal year 2007. The requirement to measure plan assets and
benefit obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008, and
was therefore effective for the Company in fiscal year 2009. The change in measurement date to August 31 resulted in an adjustment to retained earnings of
approximately $0.9 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 establishes a single authoritative
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure requirements pertaining to fair value measurements. The
provisions of SFAS No. 157 related to financial assets and liabilities as well as other assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis were effective
for the Company on September 1, 2008. The adoption of these provisions of SFAS No. 157 did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 related to other nonfinancial assets and liabilities will be effective for the Company on September 1, 2009. The
Company does not expect the adoption of these provisions to have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

15. Subsequent Events

On March 18, 2009, Acuity Brands entered into an agreement, subject to regulatory approval, to acquire 100% of the outstanding capital stock of Sensor
Switch, Inc. (“Sensor Switch”), an industry-leading developer and manufacturer of lighting controls and energy management systems. Sensor Switch, based in
Wallingford, Connecticut, offers a wide-breadth of products and solutions that substantially reduce energy consumption including occupancy sensors,
photocontrols, and distributed lighting control devices. Sensor Switch generated sales in excess of $37 million during its fiscal year ending October 31, 2008. The
terms of the agreement reflect total consideration for the purchase of approximately $205 million consisting of 2,000,000 shares of Acuity Brands’ common
stock, a $30 million note payable over three years, and approximately $131 million of cash. The cash payment will be funded from available cash on hand and
from borrowings under the Company’s existing Revolving Credit Facility. The acquisition is subject to regulatory approvals and other customary closing
conditions both of which are expected to be achieved within 30 days of the agreement.

14



Table of Contents

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes. References made to years are for fiscal
year periods.

The purpose of this discussion and analysis is to enhance the understanding and evaluation of the results of operations, financial position, cash flows,
indebtedness, and other key financial information of Acuity Brands, Inc. (“Acuity Brands”) and its subsidiaries for the three and six month periods ended
February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008. For a more complete understanding of this discussion, please read the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in this report. Also, please refer to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 27, 2008 (“Form 10-K”) for additional information regarding the Company.

Overview
Company

Acuity Brands is the parent company of Acuity Brands Lighting and other subsidiaries (collectively referred to herein as the “Company”). Acuity Brands, with its
principal office in Atlanta, Georgia, employs approximately 6,000 people worldwide.

The Company designs, produces, and distributes a broad array of indoor and outdoor lighting fixtures and related products and services for commercial and
institutional, industrial, infrastructure, and residential applications for various markets throughout North America and select international markets. The Company
is one of the world’s leading producers and distributors of lighting fixtures, with a broad, highly configurable product offering, consisting of roughly 500,000
active products as part of over 2,000 product groups that are sold to approximately 5,000 customers. The Company operates 22 factories and distribution facilities
along with three warehouses to serve its extensive customer base.

Acuity Brands completed the spin-off of its specialty products business (the “Spin-off”), Zep Inc. (“Zep”), on October 31, 2007, by distributing all of the shares
of Zep common stock, par value $.01 per share, to Acuity Brands’ stockholders of record as of October 17, 2007. Acuity Brands’ stockholders received one Zep
share, together with an associated preferred stock purchase right, for every two shares of the Company’s common stock they owned. Stockholders received cash
in lieu of fractional shares for amounts less than one full Zep share.

As aresult of the Spin-off, Acuity Brands’ financial statements have been prepared with the results of operations and cash flows of the specialty products
business presented as discontinued operations. All historical statements have been restated to conform to this presentation.

On December 31, 2008, Acuity Brands acquired for cash and stock substantially all the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Lighting Control & Design, Inc.
(“LC&D”). LC&D, located in Glendale, California, is a manufacturer of comprehensive digital lighting controls and software. LC&D offers a breadth of
products, ranging from dimming and building interfaces to digital thermostats, all within a single, scalable system. LC&D had calendar year 2008 sales of
approximately $18 million. The operating results of LC&D have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.

On March 18, 2009, Acuity Brands entered into an agreement, subject to regulatory approval, to acquire 100% of the outstanding capital stock of Sensor Switch,
Inc. (“Sensor Switch”), an industry-leading developer and manufacturer of lighting controls and energy management systems. Sensor Switch, based in
Wallingford, Connecticut, offers a wide-breadth of products and solutions that substantially reduce energy consumption including occupancy sensors,
photocontrols, and distributed lighting control devices. Sensor Switch generated sales in excess of $37 million during its fiscal year ending October 31, 2008. The
terms of the agreement reflect total consideration for the purchase of approximately $205 million consisting of stock, cash and a note payable. The acquisition is
subject to regulatory approvals and other customary closing conditions both of which are expected to be achieved within 30 days of the agreement.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Principle sources of liquidity for Acuity Brands are operating cash flows generated primarily from its business operations and various sources of borrowings. The
ability of Acuity Brands to generate sufficient cash flow from operations and access certain capital markets, including banks, is necessary to fund its operations,
to pay dividends, to meet its obligations as they become due, and to maintain compliance with covenants contained in its financing agreements.

Based on its cash on hand, availability under existing financing arrangements and current projections of cash flow from operations, Acuity Brands believes that it
will be able to meet its liquidity needs over the next 12 months. These needs are expected to include funding its operations as currently planned, making
anticipated capital investments, funding certain
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announced and potential acquisitions, funding foreseen improvement initiatives, paying quarterly stockholder dividends as currently anticipated, paying principal
and interest on borrowings as currently scheduled, and making required contributions into its employee benefit plans, as well as potentially repurchasing shares of
its outstanding common stock as authorized by the Board of Directors. Since October 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of
ten million shares of Acuity Brands’ outstanding common stock, of which approximately 9.5 million had been repurchased at February 28, 2009. The Company
currently expects to invest approximately $30 to $35 million primarily for new plant, equipment, tooling, and new and enhanced information technology
capabilities during fiscal year 2009, of which $11.7 million was invested in the first half of fiscal 2009. The Company expects to contribute approximately $3.8
million during fiscal year 2009 to fund its defined benefit plans. As of February 28, 2009, the assets in the qualified defined benefit plans declined approximately
30% compared to the values reported in the Company’s Form 10-K. The Company does not expect this decline to materially impact the contribution for fiscal
year 2009 and the impact on future periods has not yet been determined.

Cash Flow

Acuity Brands uses available cash and cash flow from operations as well as proceeds from the exercise of stock options to fund operations and capital
expenditures, to repurchase stock, to fund acquisitions, and to pay dividends. During the six months ended February 28, 2009, Acuity Brands received $2.7
million in cash primarily from stock issuances in connection with stock option exercises. These receipts were more than offset by returns to stockholders during
the first half through the payment of $10.6 million in dividends. Acuity Brands’ available cash position at February 28, 2009 was $72.3 million, a decrease of
$224.8 million from August 31, 2008. The decrease in the Company’s available cash position was due primarily to repayments of debt, cash used by operating
activities discussed below, acquisitions, dividends paid, and capital investments partially offset by proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

Acuity Brands used $3.9 million of net cash for operating activities during the first six months of fiscal year 2009 compared with $55.6 million generated in the
prior-year period, a decrease of $59.5 million. This decline was due primarily to lower net income, the cash flow impact of increased operating working capital
(calculated by adding accounts receivable, net, plus inventories, and subtracting accounts payable), and increased deferred income taxes. Operating working
capital increased by approximately $12.7 million to $221.6 million at February 28, 2009 from $208.9 million at August 31, 2008. Operating working capital
increased due primarily to higher levels of inventory in order to appropriately service customers during the previously announced consolidation of certain
manufacturing facilities. Additionally, raw materials inventory has increased to support manufacturing of products previously manufactured by outside vendors
and as a result of discontinued use of supplier logistics centers by certain suppliers. Operating working capital was also impacted by a reduction in accounts
payable partially offset by a reduction in accounts receivable, both driven by lower volume. The increase in deferred income taxes is due primarily to an increased
deferred tax asset related to the special charge reserves. The Company expects to generate cash flow from operations less capital expenditures approximately
equal to net income during fiscal year 2009. Management believes that investing in assets and programs that will over time increase the overall return on its
invested capital is a key factor in driving stockholder value. The Company invested $11.7 million and $14.6 million in the first six months of fiscal year 2009 and
2008, respectively, primarily for new tooling, machinery, equipment, and information technology. As noted above, the Company expects to invest between $30
million and $35 million for new plant, equipment, tooling, and new and enhanced information technology capabilities during fiscal year 2009.

During the third fiscal quarter, the Company expects to complete the proposed acquisition of Sensor Switch. A cash payment of approximately $131 million will
be funded from available cash on hand and from borrowings under the Company’s existing Revolving Credit Facility. The Company will also issue a $30 million
note payable over three years as consideration in the agreement.

Capitalization

The current capital structure of Acuity Brands is comprised principally of senior notes and equity of its stockholders. As of February 28, 2009, Acuity Brands had
no borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility discussed below. As of February 28, 2009, total debt outstanding decreased $160.0 million to $204.0 million at
February 28, 2009 compared to $364.0 million at August 31, 2008, primarily due to the repayment of the $160 million 6% notes, which matured in February
2009.

On October 19, 2007, the Company executed a $250 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit Facility matures in
October 2012 and contains financial covenants including a minimum interest coverage ratio and a leverage ratio (“Maximum Leverage Ratio”) of total
indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization expense), as such terms are defined in the Revolving Credit Facility
agreement. These ratios are computed at the end of each fiscal quarter for the most recent 12-month period. The Revolving Credit Facility allows for a Maximum
Leverage Ratio of 3.50, subject to certain conditions defined in the financing agreement. As of February 28, 2009, the Company was in compliance with all
financial covenants and had no outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. At February 28, 2009, the Company had borrowing capacity under
the Revolving Credit Facility of $241.3 million under the most restrictive covenant in effect at the time, which represents the full amount of the Revolving Credit
Facility less outstanding letters of credit of $8.7 million. See Note 7 — Debt of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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During the second quarter of fiscal 2009, Acuity Brands commenced a cash tender offer to purchase any and all of its outstanding $160 million 6% notes due
2009 (the “Notes™) at a discounted price of $990.00 per $1,000.00. The tender offer expired on December 9, 2008. A total of $12.6 million of the Notes,
representing approximately 7.9% of the outstanding Notes, was validly tendered in the offer. The total consideration plus the applicable accrued and unpaid
interest was paid to the tendering holders on the settlement date, December 10, 2008. The gain, net of expenses, was immaterial. The remaining $147.4 million of
the Notes matured in February 2009 and Acuity Brands repaid the outstanding balance with cash on hand.

During the first six months of fiscal year 2009, the Company’s consolidated stockholders’ equity increased $5.5 million to $581.0 million at February 28, 2009
from $575.5 million at August 31, 2008. The increase was due primarily to net income earned in the period as well as stock issuances resulting from the exercise
of stock options and purchases under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan partially offset by the impact of foreign currency rate fluctuations on accumulated other
comprehensive loss items and the payment of dividends. The Company’s debt to total capitalization ratio (calculated by dividing total debt by the sum of total
debt and total stockholders’ equity) was 26.0% and 38.7% at February 28, 2009 and August 31, 2008, respectively. The ratio of debt, net of cash, to total
capitalization, net of cash, was 18.5% at February 28, 2009 and 10.4% at August 31, 2008. The Company expects its debt to total capitalization ratio to remain
below 35% after the proposed acquisition of Sensor Switch.

Dividends

The Company paid cash dividends on common stock of $10.6 million ($0.26 per share) during the first six months of fiscal year 2009 compared with $11.8
million ($0.28 per share) during the first six months of fiscal year 2008. The Company currently plans to pay quarterly dividends at an annual rate of $0.52 per
share; however, each quarterly dividend must be approved by the Board of Directors.

Results of Operations
Second Quarter of Fiscal 2009 Compared with Second Quarter of Fiscal 2008

The following table sets forth information comparing the components of net income for the three months ended February 28, 2009 with the three months ended
February 29, 2008:

Three Months Ended
February 28, February 29, Increase Percent
($ in millions, except per-share data) 2009 2008 (Decrease) Change
Net Sales $ 386.1 $ 4826 $ (96.5) (20.0)%
Cost of Products Sold 244.7 290.5 (45.8) (15.8)%
Gross Profit 141.4 192.0 (50.6) (26.4)%
Percent of net sales 36.6% 39.8% (320) bp
Selling, Distribution, and Administrative Expenses 108.2 131.3 (23.1) (17.6)%
Special Charge 4.6 — 4.6 100.0%
Operating Profit 28.6 60.7 (32.1) (52.9)%
Percent of net sales 7.4% 12.6% (520) bp
Other Expense (Income)
Interest Expense, net 7.5 7.1 0.4 5.6%
Miscellaneous Expense (Income) (0.0) 0.2 0.2 100.0%
Total Other Expense (Income) 7.5 7.3 0.2 2.7%
Income from Continuing Operations before Provision for Income Taxes 21.1 53.4 (32.3) (60.5)%
Percent of net sales 5.5% 11.1% (560) bp
Provision for Taxes 6.8 19.3 (12.5) (64.8)%
Effective tax rate 32.2% 36.1%
Income from Continuing Operations 144 34.1 (19.7) (57.8)%
Income from Discontinued Operations, net of tax — — — — %
Net Income $ 14.4 $ 34.1 $ (19.7) (57.8)%
Diluted Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations $ 0.35 $ 0.82 $ (0.47) (57.3)%
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Results from Continuing Operations

Net sales were $386.1 million for the three months ended February 28, 2009 compared with $482.6 million reported in the prior-year period, a decrease of $96.5
million, or 20.0%. For the three months ended February 28, 2009, the Company reported income from continuing operations of $14.4 million (including a $2.9
million after-tax special charge for estimated costs the Company incurred to simplify and streamline its operations and consolidate certain manufacturing
facilities) compared with $34.1 million for the three months ended February 29, 2008. Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations were $0.35
(including $0.07 related to the special charge) for the second quarter of fiscal 2009 as compared with $0.82 reported for the second quarter of fiscal 2008, a
decrease of 57.3%.

Net Sales

The 20.0% decline in net sales for the three months ended February 28, 2009 compared with the prior-year period was due primarily to lower volume of product
shipments and unfavorable impact of foreign currency fluctuation partially offset by enhanced mix of products sold and favorable pricing. The lower volume of
product shipments is due primarily to continued declining demand in the non-residential construction market, particularly in commercial and industrial buildings.
Approximately one third of the volume decline is as a result of continued weakness in the residential market and reduced new store openings by certain large
retailers. These volume declines were only slightly offset by benefits from a richer mix of new and innovative products sold at higher per unit sales prices that
offer customers greater benefits and features and improved pricing primarily implemented to offset increased material costs. The Company estimates that an
enhanced mix of products sold and improved pricing favorably impacted sales by approximately 2%. The LC&D acquisition contributed less than 1% to net sales
during the second quarter of fiscal 2009. Unfavorable fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates contributed approximately $9.5 million, or 2%, to the
decrease in net sales during the second quarter of fiscal 2009.

Gross Profit

Gross profit margins decreased 320 basis points to 36.6% of net sales for the three months ended February 28, 2009 from 39.8% reported for the prior-year
period. Gross profit decreased $50.6 million, or 26.4%, to $141.4 million for the three months ended February 28, 2009 compared with $192.0 million for the
prior-year period. The deterioration in gross profit and gross profit margin was largely attributable to overall volume declines and increased raw materials and
component costs which were not recovered by benefits from higher price and richer product mix. The Company estimates that raw material and component costs
increased $18 million compared to the year-ago period and believes less than half of this increase was recovered in higher prices. These factors were only
partially offset by benefits from programs to improve productivity, delivery performance, and quality. The impact on gross profit from raw material and
commodity costs not recovered through price and product mix is expected to continue to be unfavorable, although at a lower rate, for the remainder of the fiscal
year.

Operating Profit

Selling, distribution, and administrative expenses (“SD&A expenses”) were $108.2 million for the three months ended February 28, 2009 compared with $131.3
million in the prior-year period, which represented a decrease of $23.1 million, or 17.6%. The majority of the decrease in SD&A expenses was due primarily to
benefits from the actions taken during fiscal 2008 and the first quarter of fiscal 2009 to streamline and simplify operations as well as benefits from other general
and administrative cost containment programs. Additionally, lower freight costs and commissions paid to the Company’s sales forces and agents, which typically
vary directly with sales, as well as lower expenses for the Company’s incentive compensation plans benefited the second quarter of fiscal 2009 as compared to the
prior-year period. Partially offsetting these benefits were selected investments in sales and marketing resources and new products and services as well as
incremental SD&A expenses related to LC&D. SD&A expenses as a percent of sales were 28.0% for the second quarter of fiscal 2009 compared to 27.2% for the
year-ago period. The increase in SD&A expenses as a percent of sales is due primarily to additional investments in product innovation and technology and certain
sales and marketing activities as well as expanding the Company’s capabilities to service the renovation and relight market.

Gross profit less SD&A expenses was $33.2 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 compared with $60.7 million in the prior-year period, which represented
a decrease of $27.5 million, or 45.3%. The decrease was due to gross profit declines partially offset by lower SD&A expenses as noted above. The Company
believes this measure provides greater comparability and enhanced visibility into the Company’s performance.

As part of the Company’s ongoing initiatives to streamline and simplify operations, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $4.6 million during the second
quarter of fiscal 2009. The fiscal 2009 charge reflects severance, retention payments, and related employee benefit costs associated with the previously announced
consolidation of certain manufacturing facilities and further reductions in workforce. See the Outlook section for expected savings from these actions.
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Operating profit was $28.6 million for the three months ended February 28, 2009 compared with $60.7 million reported for the prior-year period, a decrease of
$32.1 million, or 52.9%. Operating profit margin declined 520 basis points to 7.4% compared with 12.6% in the year-ago period. The decrease in operating profit
margin in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 compared with the prior-year period was due to the decrease in gross profit and the recording of the special charge
partially offset by the decrease in SD&A expenses noted above.

Other Expense (Income)

Other expense for Acuity Brands consists primarily of interest expense and foreign exchange related gains and losses. Interest expense, net, was $7.5 million and
$7.1 million for the three months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively. Interest expense, net, increased 5.6% in the second quarter of
fiscal 2009 compared with the second quarter of fiscal 2008 due primarily to lower interest income as a result of lower interest rates and lower invested cash
balances partially offset by lower interest expense as a result of repayment of the $160 million Notes in February. The fluctuation in miscellaneous expense
(income) was due primarily to the impact of exchange rates on foreign currency transactions.

Provision for Income Taxes and Income from Continuing Operations

The effective income tax rate reported by the Company was 32.2% and 36.1% for the three months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively.
The effective tax rate for the second quarter of fiscal 2009 is lower than the year-ago period due primarily to tax deductions having a greater impact as a result of
lower pre-tax earnings compared with the prior-year period. The Company estimates that the effective tax rate for the year will be approximately 33% if the rates
in its taxing jurisdictions remain generally consistent throughout the year.

Income from continuing operations for the second quarter of fiscal 2009 decreased $19.7 million to $14.4 million (including $2.9 million after-tax for the special
charge) from $34.1 million reported for the prior-year period. The decrease in income from continuing operations resulted primarily from the above noted
decrease in operating profit, partially offset by lower tax expense.

Net Income

Net income for the second quarter of fiscal 2009 decreased $19.7 million to $14.4 million from $34.1 million reported for the prior-year period. The decrease in
net income resulted primarily from the above noted decrease in income from continuing operations.
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Six Months of Fiscal 2009 Compared with Six Months of Fiscal 2008

As a result of the Spin-off, effected October 31, 2007, all results of operations reflect the specialty products business as discontinued operations. The following
table sets forth information comparing the components of net income for the six months ended February 28, 2009 with the six months ended February 29, 2008:

Six Months Ended
February 28, February 29, Increase Percent
($ in millions, except per-share data) 2009 2008 (Decrease) Change
Net Sales $ 8382 $ 9915 $ (153.3) (15.5)%
Cost of Products Sold 522.0 596.2 (74.2) (12.49)%
Gross Profit 316.1 395.2 (79.1) (20.0)%
Percent of net sales 37.7% 39.9% (220) bp
Selling, Distribution, and Administrative Expenses 227.1 265.0 (37.9) (14.3)%
Special Charge 26.6 14.6 12.0 82.2%
Operating Profit 62.4 115.6 (53.2) (46.0)%
Percent of net sales 7.4% 11.7% (430) bp
Other Expense (Income)
Interest Expense, net 15.5 14.1 1.4 9.9%
Miscellaneous Expense (Income) “4.2) (0.1) 4.1 4100.0%
Total Other Expense (Income) 11.3 14.0 2.7) (19.3)%
Income from Continuing Operations before Provision for Income Taxes 51.0 101.7 (50.7) (49.9)%
Percent of net sales 6.1% 10.2% (410) bp
Provision for Taxes 17.3 36.6 (19.3) (52.7)%
Effective tax rate 33.9% 36.0%
Income from Continuing Operations 33.8 65.1 (31.3) (48.1)%
Income from Discontinued Operations, net of tax — 0.1 (0.1) (100.0)%
Net Income $ 33.8 $ 65.2 $ (31.4) (48.2)%
Diluted Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations $ 0.83 $ 1.54 $ (0.71) (46.1)%

Results from Continuing Operations

Net sales were $838.2 million for the six months ended February 28, 2009 compared with $991.5 million reported in the prior-year period, a decrease of $153.3
million, or 15.5%. For the six months ended February 28, 2009, the Company reported income from continuing operations of $33.8 million (including a $16.8
million after-tax special charge for estimated costs the Company intends to incur to simplify and streamline its operations and consolidate certain manufacturing
facilities) compared with $65.1 million (including a $9.1 million after-tax special charge for estimated costs the Company incurred to simplify and streamline its
operations as a result of the Spin-off) earned for the six months ended February 29, 2008. Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations were $0.83
(including $0.41 related to the special charge) for the first half of fiscal 2009 as compared with $1.54 (including $0.21 related to the special charge) reported for
the first half of 2008, a decrease of 46.1%.

Net Sales

The 15.5% decline in net sales for the six months ended February 28, 2009 compared with the prior-year period was due primarily to lower volume of product
shipments and unfavorable impact of foreign currency fluctuation partially offset by enhanced mix of products sold and favorable pricing. More than one third of
the lower volume of product shipments is due to continued weakness in the residential market and reduced new store openings by certain large retailers. The
Company also experienced declines in product shipments as a result of continued declining demand in the non-residential construction market, particularly in
commercial and industrial buildings. These volume declines were partially offset by benefits from a richer mix of new and innovative products, which offer
customers greater benefits and features, sold at higher per unit sales prices and improved pricing primarily implemented to offset increased material costs. The
Company estimates that an enhanced mix of products sold and improved pricing favorably impacted sales by approximately 3%. The LC&D acquisition
contributed an immaterial amount to net sales during the period. Unfavorable fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates contributed approximately $17.0
million, or 2%, to the decrease in net sales during the first half of fiscal 2009.
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Gross Profit

Gross profit margins decreased 220 basis points to 37.7% of net sales for the six months ended February 28, 2009 from 39.9% reported for the prior-year period.
Gross profit decreased $79.1 million, or 20.0%, to $316.1 million for the six months ended February 28, 2009 compared with $395.2 million for the prior-year
period. The deterioration in gross profit and gross profit margin was largely attributable to overall volume declines and increased raw materials and component
costs which were not recovered by benefits from higher price and richer product mix. The Company estimates that raw material and component costs increased
approximately $34 million compared with the year-ago period of which only approximately half was recovered in higher prices. These factors were only partially
offset by benefits from programs to improve productivity, delivery performance, and quality. The impact on gross profit from raw material and commodity costs
not recovered through price and product mix is expected to continue to be unfavorable, although at a lower rate, for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Operating Profit

SD&A expenses were $227.1 million for the six months ended February 28, 2009 compared with $265.0 million in the prior-year period, which represented a
decrease of $37.9 million, or 14.3%. The majority of the decrease in SD&A expenses was due primarily to benefits from the actions taken during fiscal 2008 and
the first quarter of fiscal 2009 to streamline and simplify operations as well as benefits from other general and administrative cost containment programs.
Additionally, lower freight costs and commissions paid to the Company’s sales forces and agents, which typically vary directly with sales, as well as lower
expenses for the Company’s incentive compensation plans benefited the first half of fiscal 2009 as compared to the prior-year period. Partially offsetting these
benefits were selected investments in sales and marketing resources and new products and services as well as incremental SD&A expenses related to the LC&D
acquisition. SD&A expenses as a percent of sales were 27.1% for the first half of fiscal 2009 compared to 26.7% for the year-ago period. The increase in SD&A
expenses as a percent of sales is due primarily to investments in product innovation and technology and certain sales and marketing activities as well as
expanding the Company’s capabilities to service the renovation and relight market.

Gross profit less SD&A expenses was $89.0 million in the first half of fiscal 2009 compared with $130.2 million in the prior-year period, which represented a
decrease of $41.2 million, or 31.6%. The decrease was due to gross profit declines partially offset by lower SD&A expenses as noted above. The Company
believes this measure provides greater comparability and enhanced visibility into the improvements realized.

As part of the Company’s ongoing initiative to streamline and simplify operations, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $26.6 million in the first half of
fiscal 2009 compared to $14.6 million recorded in the prior-year period. The fiscal 2009 charge reflects severance, retention payments, and related employee
benefit costs associated with the previously announced consolidation of certain manufacturing facilities and reductions in workforce as well as impairment
charges on certain assets related to those manufacturing facilities. See the Outlook section for expected savings from these actions. The fiscal 2008 charge
reflected severance and related employee benefit costs associated with the elimination of certain positions worldwide and the costs associated with the early
termination of certain leases, primarily related to the Spin-off.

Operating profit was $62.4 million for the six months ended February 28, 2009 compared with $115.6 million reported for the prior-year period, a decrease of
$53.2 million, or 46.0%. Operating profit margin decreased 430 basis points to 7.4% compared with 11.7% in the year-ago period. The decrease in operating
profit margin in the first half of fiscal 2009 compared with the prior-year period was due to the decrease in gross profit and the increase in the special charge
partially offset by the decrease in SD&A expenses noted above.

Other Expense (Income)

Other expense for Acuity Brands consists primarily of interest expense and foreign exchange related gains and losses. Interest expense, net, was $15.5 million and
$14.1 million for the six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively. Interest expense, net, increased 9.9% in the first half of fiscal 2009
compared with the first half of fiscal 2008 due primarily to lower interest income as a result of lower interest rates partially offset by lower interest expense as a
result of repayment of the $160 million Notes. The fluctuation in miscellaneous expense (income) was due primarily to the impact of exchange rates on foreign
currency transactions.

Provision for Income Taxes and Income from Continuing Operations

The effective income tax rate reported by the Company was 33.9% and 36.0% for the six months ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively.
The current period tax rate was lower than the prior-year period due primarily to tax deductions having a greater impact as a result of lower pre-tax earnings
compared with the prior-year period. The Company estimates that the effective tax rate for the year will be approximately 33% if the rates in its taxing
jurisdictions remain generally consistent throughout the year.
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Income from continuing operations for the first half of fiscal 2009 decreased $31.3 million to $33.8 million (including $16.8 million after-tax for the special
charge) from $65.1 million (including $9.1 million after-tax for the special charge) reported for the prior-year period. The decrease in income from continuing
operations resulted primarily from the above noted decrease in operating profit, partially offset by lower tax expense.

Results from Discontinued Operations and Net Income

The Company generated no income from discontinued operations for the first half of fiscal 2009 compared to $0.1 million in the prior-year period.

Net income for the first six months of fiscal 2009 decreased $31.4 million to $33.8 million from $65.2 million reported for the prior-year period. The decrease in
net income resulted primarily from the above noted decrease in income from continuing operations.

Outlook

Rising unemployment and tight credit markets as well as other factors have created great uncertainty regarding the direction and vitality of the U.S. economy.
These factors have contributed to very low consumer and business confidence levels resulting in a decidedly bearish sentiment regarding future near-term
construction activity. As a result of extreme volatility in the market place, the correlation of traditional measures for gauging future construction activity is
making it difficult to forecast future shorter-term demand for lighting fixtures. Nevertheless, the Company expects the percentage decline in full year revenues
compared with the year ago period to be at least in the middle to upper teens.

The Company’s profitability in the second half of fiscal 2009 should benefit from seasonally higher sales, increased benefits from previously announced
streamlining actions, and lower material costs as compared to the first half of the fiscal year, partially offset by a more competitive pricing environment.
Management expects to realize more than $50 million of annualized cost savings as a result of the streamlining actions taken in fiscal 2009 of which
approximately $20 million is expected to be realized in the second half of the current fiscal year following the consolidation of previously announced
manufacturing operations that are scheduled to be substantially complete by the fiscal fourth quarter. The Company expects cash flows to be positive in the
second half of fiscal 2009 driven by inventory reductions following the completion of the consolidation of certain manufacturing facilities. Efforts to lower
inventory may negatively impact profitability in the second half due to the under-absorption of costs as the Company temporarily produces fewer products than it
sells. While the recent acquisition of LC&D and the proposed acquisition of Sensor Switch are important strategic additions with favorable longer-term potential,
they are not expected to materially impact the Company’s results for the remainder of fiscal 2009. Backlog at the end of the second quarter was $138 million,
down 14 percent versus the prior year, and incoming orders in March were down nearly 20 percent compared with the year ago period.

While the current turmoil in the economic environment will likely negatively impact results in the near-term, management remains very positive about the long-
term future performance of the Company and its ability to outperform the market. Management continues to position the Company to optimize short-term
performance while investing in and deploying resources to further profitable growth opportunities for the long-term. The Company continues to focus on and
invest in industry-leading product innovation incorporating sustainable design and increased service and product capabilities to better serve existing customers as
well as the renovation and relight market. With the recent acquisition of LC&D and completion of the proposed acquisition of Sensor Switch, the Company is
creating a platform with extensive capabilities offering some of the most technologically advanced sustainable lighting solutions incorporating both controls and
fixtures to maximize energy savings while delivering exceptional quality. Management believes these acquisitions will accelerate the Company’s participation in
both the new construction market and the building energy management systems market while expanding its presence in the very large and dynamic renovation
and relight market.

These are extraordinarily challenging times. However, the Company’s past and future actions to create value for customers, invest in associates to be even more
customer-focused and productive, and more effectively deploy assets to generate greater returns for shareholders should enhance the Company’s opportunity to
prosper over the long-term.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations addresses the financial condition and results of operations as reflected
in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates and judgments, including those related
to: inventory valuation; share-based compensation expense; depreciation, amortization and the recoverability of long-lived assets, including intangible assets;
medical, product warranty, and other reserves; litigation; and environmental matters. Management bases its estimates and judgments on its substantial historical
experience and other relevant factors, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Management discusses the development of significant accounting estimates
with the Company’s Audit Committee. As a result of recent declines in the Company’s revenues and general economic conditions, below is a more detailed
discussion of the Company’s accounting policies regarding the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets.

Goodwill and Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets

Acuity Brands reviews goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis in the fiscal fourth quarter or on an interim basis if an
event occurs or circumstances changes that would more likely than not indicate that the fair value of the long-lived asset is below its carrying value. All other
long-lived and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss for goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles would be recognized based on the difference between the carrying value of the asset
and its estimated fair value, which would be determined based on either discounted future cash flows or other appropriate fair value methods. The evaluation of
goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles for impairment requires management to use significant judgments and estimates including, but not limited to, projected
future net sales, operating results, and cash flow.

Although management currently believes that the estimates used in the evaluation of goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles are reasonable, differences between
actual and expected net sales, operating results, and cash flow and/or changes in the discount rate or theoretical royalty rate could cause these assets to be deemed
impaired. If this were to occur, the Company would be required to charge to earnings the write-down in value of such assets, which could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial position, but not its cash flows from operations.

Goodwill

Acuity Brands has two reporting units Acuity Brands Lighting (“ABL”) and Acuity Brands Technology Services. All of the goodwill balance of $373.3 million is
associated with ABL and ABL represents over 98% of the Company’s carrying value. In determining the fair value of the Company’s ABL reporting unit, Acuity
Brands uses a discounted cash flow analysis, which requires assumptions about discount rates as well as short and long-term growth (or decline) rates. The
Company utilized an estimated discount rate of 11.3% as of February 28, 2009, based on the Capital Asset Pricing Model, which considers the updated risk-free
interest rate, beta, market risk premium, and entity specific size premium. Short-term growth (or decline) rates are based on management’s forecasted financial
results which consider key business drivers such as specific revenue growth initiatives, market share changes, growth (or decline) in non-residential and
residential construction markets, and general economic factors such as credit availability and interest rates. Acuity Brands calculates the discounted cash flows
using a 10-year period with a terminal value and compares this calculation to the discounted cash flows generated over a 40-year period to ensure reasonableness.
The long-term growth rate used in determining terminal value is estimated at 3% for Acuity Brands and is primarily based on the Company’s understanding of
projections for expected long-term growth in non-residential construction, the Company’s key market.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2009, Acuity Brands performed an interim evaluation of the fair value of goodwill, triggered by the continuing decline in the
non-residential construction market and specifically in the Company’s revenues. The analysis included downward adjustments to the Company’s revenue
forecasts and related short-term growth rates. The goodwill analysis did not result in an impairment charge as the estimated fair value of the ABL reporting unit
continues to exceed the carrying value by a significant amount.

Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets

Acuity Brands’ indefinite lived intangible assets consist of three unamortized trade names with an aggregate carrying value of approximately $73.6 million.
Management estimates the fair value of these unamortized trade names using a fair value model
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based on discounted future cash flows. Future cash flows associated with each of the Company’s unamortized trade names are calculated by applying a theoretical
royalty rate a willing third party would pay for use of the particular trade name to estimated future net sales. The present value of the resulting after-tax cash flow
is management’s current estimate of the fair value of the trade names. This fair value model requires management to make several significant assumptions,
including estimated future net sales, the royalty rate, and the discount rate.

Future net sales and short-term growth (or decline) rates are estimated for each particular trade name based on management’s forecasted financial results which
consider key business drivers such as specific revenue growth initiatives, market share changes, expected growth (or decline) in non-residential and residential
construction markets, and general economic factors such as credit availability and interest rates. The long-term growth rate used in determining terminal value is
estimated at 3% for Acuity Brands and is primarily based on the Company’s understanding of projections for expected long-term growth in non-residential
construction, the Company’s key market. The theoretical royalty rate is estimated using a factor of operating profit margins and management’s assumptions
regarding the amount a willing third party would pay to use the particular trade name. Differences between expected and actual results can result in significantly
different valuations. If future operating results are unfavorable compared with forecasted amounts, the Company may be required to reduce the theoretical royalty
rate used in the fair value model. A reduction in the theoretical royalty rate would result in lower expected, future after-tax cash flow in the valuation model. As
with goodwill noted above, the Company utilized an estimated discount rate of 11.3% as of February 28, 2009, based on the Capital Asset Pricing Model, which
considers the updated risk-free interest rate, beta, market risk premium, and entity specific size premium.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2009, Acuity Brands performed an interim evaluation of the fair value of its three unamortized trade names, triggered by the
continuing decline in the non-residential construction market and specifically in the Company’s revenues and cash flows related to these trade names. Acuity
Brands adjusted expected revenues based on recent lighting market growth or decline estimates for fiscal years 2010 through 2013. The Company also included
revenue growth estimates based on current initiatives expected to help the Company improve performance in the declining market. During fiscal 2009, estimated
theoretical royalty rates ranged between 1% and 4%. The indefinite lived intangible asset analysis did not result in an impairment charge as the fair values exceed
the carrying values by a significant amount except for the Mark Lighting trade name which has a fair value that exceeds its $8.6 million carrying value by
approximately 10%.

For a detailed discussion of other significant accounting policies that may involve a higher degree of judgment, please refer to the Company’s Form 10-K.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This filing contains forward-looking statements, within the meaning of the federal securities laws. Statements made herein that may be considered forward-
looking include statements incorporating terms such as “expects,” “believes,” “intends,” “anticipates” and similar terms that relate to future events, performance,
or results of the Company. In addition, the Company, or the executive officers on the Company’s behalf, may from time to time make forward-looking statements
in reports and other documents the Company files with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or in connection with oral statements made to the
press, potential investors or others. Forward-looking statements include, without limitation: (a) the Company’s projections regarding financial performance,
liquidity, capital structure, capital expenditures, dividends and the impact of the recent acquisition of LC&D and the proposed acquisition of Sensor Switch;

(b) expectations about the impact of volatility and uncertainty in general economic conditions; (c) external or internal forecasts projecting unit volume decline;
(d) expectations about the impact of volatility and uncertainty in component and commodity costs and the Company’s ability to manage those costs as well as the
Company’s response with pricing of its products; (e) the Company’s ability to execute and realize benefits from initiatives related to streamlining its operations,
capitalizing on growth opportunities, expanding in key markets, enhancing service to the customer, and investing in product innovation; and (f) the Company’s
ability to achieve its long-term financial goals and measures. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements, which speak only
as of the date of this quarterly report. Except as required by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or release any revisions to these
forward-looking statements to reflect any events or circumstances after the date of this quarterly report or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. The
Company’s forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from the historical
experience of the Company and management’s present expectations or projections. Risks and uncertainties related to the recent acquisition of LC&D and the
proposed acquisition of Sensor Switch include, but are not limited to, integration of the acquisitions and realizing expected synergies from the acquisitions, and in
the case of the proposed Sensor Switch acquisition, satisfaction of the conditions to closing. Additional risks and uncertainties impacting the Company’s business
include, but are not limited to, customer and supplier relationships and prices; general economic conditions; competition; ability to realize anticipated benefits
from initiatives taken and timing of benefits; market demand; litigation and other contingent liabilities; and political, governmental, and technological factors
affecting the Company. In addition, additional risks that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the Company’s
forward-looking statements are discussed in Part I, “Item 1a. Risk Factors” of Acuity Brands’ Form 10-K, and are specifically incorporated herein by reference.

 «
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

General. Acuity Brands is exposed to market risks that may impact the Consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Income, and Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows due primarily to fluctuation in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. There have been no material changes to the
Company’s exposure from market risks from those disclosed in Part II, Item 7a. of Acuity Brands’ Form 10-K.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to reasonably ensure that information required to be disclosed in the
reports filed or submitted by Acuity Brands under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized,
and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to reasonably ensure that information required to be disclosed by Acuity Brands in the reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

As required by SEC rules, the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of February 28,
2009. This evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and principal
financial officer. Based on this evaluation, these officers have concluded that the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective at a reasonable assurance level as of February 28, 2009. However, because all disclosure procedures must rely to a significant degree on actions or
decisions made by employees throughout the organization, such as reporting of material events, the Company and its reporting officers believe that they cannot
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud or errors and omissions, if any, within the Company will be detected. Limitations within
any control system, including the Company’s control system, include faulty judgments in decision-making or simple errors or mistakes. In addition, controls can
be circumvented by an individual, by collusion between two or more people, or by management override of the control. Because of these limitations,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected.

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s most recent completed fiscal quarter
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Acuity Brands is subject to various legal claims arising in the normal course of business. The Company is self-insured up to specified limits for certain types of
claims, including product liability, and is fully self-insured for certain other types of claims, including employment practices, environmental, product recall, and
patent infringement. Based on information currently available, it is the opinion of management that the ultimate resolution of pending and threatened legal
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial position, or cash flows of Acuity Brands. However, in the event of
unexpected future developments, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of such matters, if unfavorable, could have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations, financial position, or cash flows of Acuity Brands in future periods. Acuity Brands establishes reserves for legal claims when the costs associated with
the claims become probable and can be reasonably estimated. The actual costs of resolving legal claims may be substantially higher or lower than the amounts
reserved for such claims. However, the Company cannot make a meaningful estimate of actual costs to be incurred that could possibly be higher or lower than the
amounts reserved.

Information regarding reportable legal proceedings is contained in Part I, “Item 3. Legal Proceedings” in the Company’s Form 10-K. Information set forth in this
report’s Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements describes any legal proceedings that became reportable during the quarter ended February 28,
2009, and updates any descriptions of previously reported legal proceedings in which there have been material developments during such quarter. Discussion of
legal proceedings included within Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements is incorporated into this Item 1 by reference.

Item la. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes in the Company’s risk factors from those disclosed in Part I, “Item 1a. Risk Factors” of Acuity Brands’ Form 10-K.

Item 2. Changes in Securities, Use of Proceeds and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Since October 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of ten million shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock, of
which approximately 9.5 million had been repurchased as of February 28, 2009. However, no repurchases were made during the Company’s most recent
completed fiscal quarter.

The Company has a commitment to issue 281,624 shares as consideration for the acquisition of Lighting Control and Design, Inc. The Company’s Board of
Directors reserved and set aside from shares of Common Stock held as treasury shares 281,624 shares to be issued pursuant to the terms of the Lighting Control
and Design purchase agreement.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

At the Company’s annual meeting of shareholders held on January 8, 2009 in Atlanta, Georgia, the shareholders elected the following nominees to the Board of
Directors for various terms identified in the following table. Votes cast were as follows:

Term Expiring at the

Annual Meeting for For Withheld
Peter C. Browning 2011 33,437,003 3,739,567
John L. Clendenin 2011 36,419,151 757,419
Ray M. Robinson 2011 34,245,088 2,931,482
Gordon D. Harnett 2010 36,426,043 750,527
George C. (Jack) Guynn 2009 36,445,967 730,603

In addition to the above elected directors, the directors whose term of office continued after the meeting are as follows: Robert F. McCullough, Vernon J. Nagel,
Julia B. North, and Neil Williams.

Votes cast for or against, and the number of abstentions and broker non-votes for the other proposal brought before the meeting are as follows:

Broker
Non-
Proposal For Against Abstain Votes
Ratification of the Audit Committee’s appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm 36,907,151 214,595 54,823 —
Item 5. Other Information

Effective October 24, 2008, the Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan was revised to incorporate covenant
provisions pertaining to confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and non-competition. The Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Key Employees
and the Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers of Acuity Brands, Inc. under the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan were also
revised to incorporate the covenant provisions by reference to the Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement. The revised forms are attached hereto as Exhibits
10 (g), 10 (i) and 10 (j), respectively.

Effective April 6, 2009, the Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plan was revised to expand the non-
competition covenant provisions. The revised form is attached hereto as Exhibit 10 (h). The expanded non-competition covenant provisions also apply to the
Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Key Employees and the Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers of Acuity
Brands, Inc. which incorporate the covenant provisions by reference to the Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement.

The Company made employment letters available to each of Mark A. Black, Executive Vice President of Acuity Brands Lighting, Jeremy M. Quick, Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Acuity Brands Lighting and John T. Hartman, the Former Executive Vice President and Chief Commercial Officer
of Acuity Brands Lighting in connection with their original hiring, which in each instance occurred prior to the individuals becoming named executive officers.
The employment letters for Messrs. Black, Quick and Hartman are filed as exhibits 10 (f), 10 (e) and 10 (d) to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. However, the
Company notes that terms of each officer’s at-will employment described in the employment letters are no longer reflective of current salary and benefits levels.
Accordingly, the offer letters as well as current compensation and benefit levels for each officer (or former officer) are described in the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption “Executive Compensation—Executive Compensation Tables.”

Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibits are listed on the Index to Exhibits (page 29).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
REGISTRANT

DATE: April 8, 2009 /s/ Vernon J. Nagel

VERNON J. NAGEL
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DATE: April 8, 2009 /s/ Richard K. Reece

RICHARD K. REECE
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Sensor Switch, Inc., Brian
Planter, Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc., Acuity Brands, Inc., dated as
of March 18, 2009.

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Acuity Brands, Inc.
(formerly Acuity Brands Holdings, Inc.), dated as of September 26,
2007.

Certificate of Amendment of Acuity Brands, Inc. (formerly Acuity
Brands Holdings, Inc.), dated as of September 26, 2007.

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Acuity Brands, Inc., effective as
of January 8, 2009.

Form of Severance Agreement.

Long-Term Incentive Plan Fiscal Year 2009 Plan Rules for Executive
Officers.

Management Compensation and Incentive Plan Fiscal Year 2009
Plan Rules for Executive Officers.

Employment Letter dated April 29, 2004 between Acuity Brands
Lighting, Inc. and John T. Hartman.

Employment Letter dated October 29, 2004 between Acuity Brands
Lighting, Inc. and Jeremy M. Quick.

Employment Letter dated July 27, 2006 between Acuity Brands, Inc.
and Mark A. Black.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement effective from October
24, 2008 through April 5, 2009.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement effective April 6, 2009.

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Key Employees
effective October 24, 2008.

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive
Officers of Acuity Brands, Inc. effective October 24, 2008.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Reference is made to Exhibit 2.1 of registrant’s Form 8-K as filed
with the Commission on March 18, 2009, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1 of registrant’s Form 8-K as filed
with the Commission on September 26, 2007, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Reference is made to Exhibit 3.2 of registrant’s Form 8-K as filed
with the Commission on September 26, 2007, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1 of registrant’s Form 8-K as filed
with the Commission on October 7, 2008, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Reference is made to Exhibit 10 of registrant’s Form 10-Q as filed
with the Commission on January 6, 2009, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Reference is made to Exhibit 99.1 of registrant’s Form 8-K as filed
with the Commission on January 13, 2009, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Reference is made to Exhibit 99.2 of registrant’s Form 8-K as filed
with the Commission on January 13, 2009, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.

Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.
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(b) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company pursuant Filed with the Commission as part of this Form 10-Q.
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 10(d)
April 29, 2004

John T. Hartman
2129 Mount Paran Road
Atlanta, GA 30327

Dear John:

I am pleased to confirm our offer to you of the position of Senior Vice President of International Business for Acuity Lighting Group, Inc. (“Acuity Brands
Lighting” or “ABL”). This is an exciting opportunity for you, and I am confident that you will have a significant impact on the success of ABL. This letter
confirms the details of our offer.

EFFECTIVE DATE

You will assume the duties of your new position effective no later than May 1, 2004.

COMPENSATION
Base Salary

Your base salary will be $18,750 per month, paid on a monthly basis and based on an annual salary of $225,000. Your compensation will be administered through
the Acuity Brands Lighting payroll.

Annual Incentive Plan

You will participate in the Acuity Brands Lighting Incentive Program, currently providing a bonus opportunity of 40% of salary at target. You are guaranteed a
fiscal year 2004 bonus of 40% prorated for six (6) months and payable immediately upon your joining ABL. In the event the fiscal year 2004 group bonus payout
is higher than 40%, you will be eligible to receive an additional payment , payable at the same time bonuses are paid to other ABL executives, representing the
difference between the actual prorated six-month bonus and the 40% prorated six-month bonus.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

You will participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan under the terms of the Plan and will have the opportunity for awards calculated as a
percentage of your base salary and determined both by your position in Tier 2 of the award structure and by your contribution to ABL. Your base salary will be
used as a basis for any annual award that may be granted beginning in fiscal year 2005. In addition, on June 30, 2004, subject to Board approval, you will receive
a hire-on-award of 4,000 restricted shares that will vest at the end of four years and stock options for 15,000 shares that will vest in three equal annual
installments. The exercise price of the stock option shares will be the closing price of Acuity Brands common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on June 30,
2004. In order to receive this grant, you will be expected to sign a restricted stock award agreement that includes provisions governing confidentiality, non-
solicitation and non-compete.



Supplemental Deferred Compensation Plan

You will be eligible to participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. Supplemental Deferred Savings Plan under the standard provisions of the Plan.

401k Plan

You will be eligible to participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. 401(k) Plan, which currently includes a company match of 60% of deferrals up to 6% salary.

Health Insurance and Benefits

You will be eligible for the Acuity Brands Lighting standard health insurance and benefit plans. Your medical coverage will become effective on the first of the
month following your start date. The benefits include:

Medical

Prescription Drug Plan

Life Insurance

Short-term Disability
Long-term Disability

Flex Benefit Program
Voluntary Dental Program
Voluntary EyeMed Program

Vacation

You will be entitled to four (4) weeks vacation per calendar year.

Your employment will be at will and may be terminated by either Acuity Lighting Group, Inc. or by you at any time for any reason, with or without notice.
Except in the event of a termination in connection with a Change in Control of Acuity Brands, Inc. (as defined in the Severance Protection Agreement that will
cover you), you will be entitled to the following severance payment if your employment in this position is terminated for any reason other than voluntary
termination (including early or normal retirement), termination upon death or Disability (as defined below), or termination by Acuity Lighting Group, Inc. for
Cause (as defined below): you will receive a severance payment (payable in equal monthly installments) equal to your then-current base salary for a period of
twelve (12) months, subject to your execution of a release and severance agreement in a form acceptable to both parties.

For purposes of entitlement to a severance benefit, “Cause” shall mean any act(s) on your part that constitutes fraud, a felony involving dishonesty, a breach of
fiduciary duty, a breach of the Code of Business Conduct, insubordination, or gross malfeasance or habitual neglect of your duties for Acuity Brands Lighting and
“Disability” shall mean a physical or mental infirmity which impairs your ability to substantially perform your duties a s Senior Vice President, International
Business, with or without reasonable accommodation for a period of one hundred eight (180) consecutive days.



With respect to Change in Control situations, you will be covered by a Severance Protection Agreement with the same provisions as a generally applicable to
officers of Acuity Brands Lighting at a multiple of 1.5 times base salary. In the event of your termination in connection with a Change in Control that entitles you
to benefits under the Severance Protection Agreement, you will receive the greater of the payments and benefits provided under the Severance Protection
Agreement or the severance payment described above.

The base salary, annual incentive, long-term incentive, nonqualified retirement benefits, and any severance payment will be structured to ensure the tax
deductibility to Acuity Brands, Inc. of the payments and benefits under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

We look forward to your joining Acuity Brands Lighting and to a long and mutually satisfactory relationship. This letter outlines your employment relationship
with Acuity Brands Lighting; if you agree with the employment terms as outlined above, please sign and date both copies of this letter agreement and return one
copy to me at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,
/s/ Kenneth W. Honeycutt, Jr.

Kenneth W. Honeycutt, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO THIS
29t DAY OF APRIL 2004.

/s/ John T. Hartman
John T. Hartman




Exhibit 10(e)
October 29, 2004

Mr. Jeremy M. Quick
9409 Koupela Drive
Raleigh, NC 27615
Dear Jerry:

I am pleased to confirm our offer to you of the position of Executive Vice President/CFO for Acuity Lighting Group, Inc. (“Acuity Brands Lighting” or “ABL”).
This is an exciting opportunity for you, and I am confident that you will have a significant impact on the success of ABL. This letter confirms the details of our
offer.

EFFECTIVE DATE

You will assume the duties of your new position effective no later than December 6, 2004.

COMPENSATION
Base Salary

Your base salary will be $24,167.00 per month, paid on a monthly basis and based on an annual salary of $290,000.00. Your compensation will be administered
through the Acuity Brands Lighting payroll.

Annual Incentive Plan
In recognition of the bonus due you from your previous company in the amount of $57,633, Acuity Brands Lighting will pay you this amount in December 2004.

You will participate in the Acuity Brands Lighting Incentive Program, currently providing a bonus opportunity of 45% of salary at target. This bonus will be
prorated from December 1, 2004 — August 31, 2005 and will be payable in November 2005.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

You will participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan commensurate with others at the Executive level of ABL. A grant of 4,500 shares
(subject to Board approval) will be awarded in January 2005. These shares will vest over 4 years ratably.

Sign-on Payment

ABL will provide with you a cash payment of $125,000.00 which was due you from your previous company. This payment will be made in two installments:
$60,000 in March 2005 and $65,000 in March 2006. These payments and other scheduled payments outlined above are conditional upon being employed at ABL
at the time of the scheduled payment.



Supplemental Deferred Compensation Plan

You will be eligible to participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. Supplemental Deferred Savings Plan under the standard provisions of the Plan.

Relocation

The company will cover the cost of selling your existing home, the closing cost of acquiring your home in Atlanta, movement of household goods and temporary
living expenses until your house is sold.

401k Plan

You will be eligible to participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. 401(k) Plan, which currently includes a company match of 60% of deferrals up to 6% salary.

Health Insurance and Benefits

You will be eligible for the Acuity Brands Lighting standard health insurance and benefit plans. Your medical coverage will become effective on the first of the
month following your start date. The benefits include:

Medical

Prescription Drug Plan

Life Insurance

Short-term Disability
Long-term Disability

Flex Benefit Program
Voluntary Dental Program
Voluntary EyeMed Program

Vacation

You will be entitled to four (4) weeks vacation per calendar year.

Employment at Will/Severance Payments/Change in Control

Your employment will be at will and may be terminated by either Acuity Lighting Group, Inc. or by you at any time for any reason, with or without notice.
Except in the event of a termination in connection with a Change in Control of Acuity Brands, Inc. (as defined in the Severance Protection Agreement that will
cover you), you will be entitled to the following severance payment if your employment in this position is terminated for any reason other than voluntary
termination (including early or normal retirement), termination upon death or Disability (as defined below), or termination by Acuity Lighting Group, Inc. for
Cause (as defined below): you will receive a severance payment (payable in equal monthly installments) equal to your ten-current base salary for a period of
twelve (12) months, subject to your execution of a release and severance agreement in a form acceptable to both parties.

For purposes of entitlement to a severance benefit, “Cause” shall mean any act(s) on your part that constitutes fraud, a felony involving dishonesty, a breach of
fiduciary duty, a breach of the Code of Business Conduct, insubordination, or gross malfeasance or habitual neglect of your duties for Acuity Brands Lighting and
“Disability” shall mean a physical or mental infirmity



which impairs your ability to substantially perform your duties as Executive Vice President/CFO, with or without reasonable accommodation for a period of one
hundred eight (180) consecutive days.

With respect to Change in Control situations, you will be covered by a Severance Protection Agreement with the same provisions as a generally applicable to
officers of Acuity Brands Lighting at a multiple of 1.5 times base salary. In the event of your termination in connection with a Change in Control that entitles you
to benefits under the Severance Protection Agreement, you will receive the greater of the payments and benefits provided under the Severance Protection
Agreement or the severance payment described above.

The base salary, annual incentive, long-term incentive, nonqualified retirement benefits, and any severance payment will be structured to ensure the tax
deductibility to Acuity Brands, Inc. of the payments and benefits under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

We look forward to your joining Acuity Brands Lighting and to a long and mutually satisfactory relationship. This letter outlines your employment relationship
with Acuity Brands Lighting; if you agree with the employment terms as outlined above, please sign and date both copies of this letter agreement and return one
copy to me at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,
/s/ Kenneth W. Honeycutt, Jr.

Kenneth W. Honeycutt, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO THIS
2nd DAY OF NOVEMBER 2004.

/s/ Jeremy M. Quick
Jeremy M. Quick




Exhibit 10(f)
July 27, 2006

Mark Black

1057 Old Thomasville Road
Winston-Salem, NC 27107
Dear Mark:

I am pleased to confirm our offer to you of the position of Vice President, Acuity Business System. This letter confirms the details of our offer.

EFFECTIVE DATE

You will assume the duties of your new position on August 1, 2006, or such other date as the parties may mutually agree (the “Effective Date”).

DUTIES

You will be employed by Acuity Brands on a full-time basis as the Vice President, Acuity Business System and will report to the Chairman, President, and Chief
Executive Officer of Acuity Brands. In that capacity, you will perform such duties and responsibilities as are reasonably assigned to you, including those
described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

COMPENSATION
Base Salary

Your starting base salary will be $25,000.00 per month, paid on a monthly basis in arrears and based on an annual salary of $300,000. Your salary will be
reviewed annually beginning October 2007.

Signing Bonus

You will receive a signing bonus of $100,000. In connection with the signing bonus, you will be responsible for any and all relocation expenses, including
temporary housing and travel to and from Atlanta, Georgia, and your current residence. Should you voluntarily terminate your employment with Acuity Brands
within two years of the Effective Date, you will be required to repay the signing bonus on a pro rata, after tax basis, assuming a combined federal and state tax
rate of 40%.

Annual Incentive Plan

You will participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. Management Compensation and Incentive Plan, with an annual bonus opportunity of 50% of salary at target
performance and a maximum opportunity of 100% of salary.



Long-Term Incentive Plan

You will participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). Under the terms of the Plan you will have the opportunity for awards
calculated as a percentage of your base salary (determined by your position commensurate with benefits for vice presidents of the Corporation), by the
performance of Acuity Brands, and by your contribution to that performance. Your base salary multiplied by your then current tier % will be used as the starting
point for any annual award that may be granted beginning in fiscal year 2008, adjusted for the performance of Acuity Brands for the fiscal year ended August 31,
2007 and your individual performance during the year.

You will receive a one-time initial award under the Plan of 20,000 time-vesting restricted shares, which will vest in four equal annual installments beginning one
year from the Effective Date.

You will be subject to the share ownership guidelines and share retention requirements applicable to other vice presidents of Acuity Brands.

Retirement Plans

You will be eligible to participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. 401(k) Plan, which currently includes a company match of 60% of deferrals up to 6% of salary,
subject to applicable federal limitations.

Deferred Compensation Plan

You will be eligible to participate in the Acuity Brands, Inc. Supplemental Deferred Savings Plan (the “SDSP” or “Plan”) under the standard provisions of the
Plan or such subsequent deferred compensation plan that may be adopted to comply with §409A of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the current provisions of
the SDSP, you may defer up to 50% of your annual cash compensation (base salary and bonus), which earns interest at the prime rate.

You will be eligible to participate in the medical, dental, life insurance, disability, and other benefit programs generally made available to employees of Acuity
Brands, which include:

Medical

Prescription Drug Plan

Life Insurance

Short-Term Disability
Long-Term Disability

Flex Benefit Program
Voluntary Dental Program
Voluntary EyeMed Program

Vacation

You will be entitled to four (4) weeks vacation per fiscal year.

Your employment will be at will and may be terminated by either Acuity Brands, Inc. or by you at any time for any reason, with or without notice. Except in the
event of a termination in connection with a Change in Control of Acuity Brands, Inc. (as defined in the Change in Control Agreement that will cover you), you
will be covered by a Severance Agreement which provides you a severance benefit in the event your employment in this position is terminated for any reason
other than voluntary termination (including early or normal retirement), termination upon death or Disability, or termination by Acuity Brands for Cause. The
terms Cause and Disability used in this paragraph will be defined in the Severance Agreement.



With respect to Change in Control situations, you will be covered by a Change in Control Agreement with the same provisions as are generally applicable to other
vice presidents of Acuity Brands. In the event of your termination in connection with a Change in Control that entitles you to benefits under the Change in
Control Agreement, you will receive the greater of the payments and benefits provided under the Change in Control Agreement or the severance payment
described above.

Other

The base salary, annual incentive, long-term incentive, nonqualified retirement benefits, and any severance payment will be structured to provide the tax
deductibility to Acuity Brands, Inc. of the payments and benefits under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

This letter outlines your employment relationship with Acuity Brands; if you agree with the employment terms as outlined above, please sign and date both
copies of this letter agreement and return one copy to me at your earliest convenience. We look forward to your joining Acuity Brands and to a long and mutually
satisfactory relationship.

Sincerely,

/s/ Vernon J. Nagel
Vernon J. Nagel
Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO THIS
31t DAY OF JULY, 2006.

/s/ Mark Black
Mark Black




Exhibit 10(g)

ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of <<Grant Date>> by and between Acuity Brands, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, (the “Company”) and
<<First_Name>> <<Middle_Name>><<Last_Name>> (“Grantee” or “Employee”).

RECITALS

A. The Company maintains the Acuity Brands, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), and Grantee has been selected by the Committee to receive a
Restricted Stock Award under the Plan;

B. As a condition to this Restricted Stock Award, Grantee agrees to be bound by the confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and non-competition
provisions set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, in consideration for receipt of the Restricted Stock award pursuant hereto, continued
employment, and other good and valuable consideration.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED, by and between the Company and Grantee, as follows:
1. Award of Restricted Stock
1.1 The Company hereby grants to Grantee an award of <<Shares_Granted>> Shares of restricted stock (“Restricted Stock”), subject to, and in accordance

with, the restrictions, terms, and conditions set forth in this Agreement. The grant date of this award of Restricted Stock is <<Grant Date>> (the “Grant Date”).

1.2 This Agreement (including any appendices or exhibits) shall be construed in accordance with, and subject to, the provisions of the Plan (the provisions
of which are incorporated herein by reference) and, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the
same definitions as set forth in the Plan.

1.3 This award of Restricted Stock is conditioned upon Grantee’s acceptance of the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A, as evidenced by Grantee’s
execution of this Agreement or by Grantee’s electronic acceptance of the Agreement in a manner and during the time period allowed by the Company. If the terms
of this Agreement are not timely accepted by execution or by such electronic means, the award of Restricted Stock may be cancelled by the Committee.
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2. Restrictions

2.1 Subject to Sections 2.3, 2.5, and 2.6 below, if the Grantee remains employed by the Company, the Restricted Stock shall vest as follows:

Number of Shares Vesting Date
<<Shrs_Vest_1>> <<Date_Vest_1>>
<<Shrs_Vest_2>> <<Date_Vest_2>>
<<Shrs_Vest_3>> <<Date_Vest_3>>
<<Shrs_Vest_4>> <<Date_Vest_4>>

For purposes of this Agreement, employment with a Subsidiary of the Company or service as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company shall be
considered employment with the Company.

2.2 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, including Exhibit A attached hereto, on each Vesting Date, Grantee shall own the Vested Shares of
Restricted Stock free and clear of all restrictions imposed by this Agreement (except those imposed by Section 3.4 below). The Company shall transfer the Vested
Shares of Restricted Stock to an unrestricted account in the name of the Grantee as soon as practical after each Vesting Date.

2.3 In the event, prior to the Vesting Date, (i) Grantee dies while actively employed by the Company, or (ii) Grantee has his or her employment terminated
by reason of Disability, any Restricted Stock shall become fully vested and nonforfeitable as of the date of Grantee’s death or Disability. The Company shall
transfer the Shares of Restricted Stock, free and clear of any restrictions imposed by this Agreement (except for Section 3.4) to Grantee (or, in the event of death,
his or her surviving spouse or, if none, to his or her estate) as soon as practical after his or her date of death or termination for Disability.

2.4 In exchange for receipt of consideration in the form of the Restricted Stock award pursuant to this Agreement, continued employment, and other good
and valuable consideration, Grantee agrees that Grantee shall comply with the confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and non-competition provisions
attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2.5 Except for death or Disability as provided in Section 2.3, or except as otherwise provided in a severance agreement with Grantee, if Grantee terminates
his or her employment or if the Company terminates Grantee prior to the Vesting Date, the Restricted Stock shall cease to vest further, the unvested Shares of
Restricted Stock shall be immediately forfeited, and Grantee shall only be entitled to the Restricted Stock that has vested as of his or her date of termination.

2.6 Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Agreement, in the event of a Change in Control prior to the Vesting Date, all Shares of Restricted Stock
shall become fully vested and nonforfeitable as of the date of the Change in Control. The Company shall transfer the Shares of Restricted Stock that become
vested pursuant to this Section 2.6 to an unrestricted account in the name of Grantee as soon as practical after the date of the Change in Control.

2.7 The Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, or otherwise encumbered prior to the date Grantee becomes vested in the
Restricted Stock.
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3. Stock; Dividends; Voting

3.1 The Restricted Stock shall be registered in the name of Grantee as of the respective Grant Date for such Shares of Restricted Stock. The Company may
issue stock certificates or evidence Grantee’s interest by using a restricted book entry account with the Company’s transfer agent. Physical possession or custody
of any stock certificates that are issued shall be retained by the Company until such time as the Shares are vested in accordance with Section 2. The Company
reserves the right to place a legend on such stock certificate(s) restricting the transferability of such certificates and referring to the terms and conditions
(including forfeiture) of this Agreement and the Plan.

3.2 During the period the Restricted Stock is not vested, the Grantee shall be entitled to receive dividends or similar distributions declared on such
Restricted Stock and Grantee shall be entitled to vote such Restricted Stock.

3.3 In the event of a Change in Capitalization, the number and class of Shares or other securities that Grantee shall be entitled to, and shall hold, pursuant to
this Agreement shall be appropriately adjusted or changed to reflect the Change in Capitalization, provided that any such additional Shares or additional or
different shares or securities shall remain subject to the restrictions in this Agreement.

3.4 Grantee represents and warrants that he or she is acquiring the Restricted Stock for investment purposes only, and not with a view to distribution
thereof. Grantee is aware that the Restricted Stock may not be registered under the federal or any state securities laws and that in that event, in addition to the
other restrictions on the Shares, they will not be able to be transferred unless an exemption from registration is available or the Shares are registered. By making
this award of Restricted Stock, the Company is not undertaking any obligation to register the Restricted Stock under any federal or state securities laws.

4.  No Right to Continued Employment or Additional Grants

Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall be interpreted or construed to confer upon Grantee any right with respect to continuance of employment
by the Company or a subsidiary, nor shall this Agreement or the Plan interfere in any way with the right of the Company or a Subsidiary to terminate Grantee’s
employment at any time. The Plan may be terminated at any time, and even if the Plan is not terminated, Grantee shall not be entitled to any additional awards
under the Plan.

5.  Taxes and Withholding

Grantee shall be responsible for all federal, state, and local income taxes payable with respect to this award of Restricted Stock and dividends paid
on unvested Restricted Stock. Grantee shall have the right to make such elections under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as are available in
connection with this award of Restricted Stock. The Company and Grantee agree to report the value of the Restricted Stock in a consistent manner for federal
income tax purposes. The Company shall have the right to retain and withhold from any payment of Restricted Stock or cash the amount of taxes required by any
government to be withheld or otherwise deducted and paid with respect to such payment. At its discretion, the
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Company may require Grantee to reimburse the Company for any such taxes required to be withheld and may withhold any distribution in whole or in part until
the Company is so reimbursed. In lieu thereof, the Company shall have the right to withhold from any other cash amounts due to Grantee an amount equal to such
taxes required to be withheld or withhold and cancel (in whole or in part) a number of shares of Restricted Stock having a market value not less than the amount
of such taxes.

6. Grantee Bound by the Plan

Grantee hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and the prospectus for the Plan, and agrees to be bound by all the terms and provisions
thereof.

7.  Modification of Agreement

This Agreement may be modified, amended, suspended, or terminated, and any terms or conditions may be waived, but only by mutual agreement of
the parties in writing.

8. Severability

Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected by such holding and shall continue in full force in accordance with their terms.

9. Governing Law

The validity, interpretation, construction, and performance of this Agreement and Exhibit A shall be governed by the laws of the state of Delaware
without giving effect to the conflicts of laws principles thereof.

10. Successors in Interest

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the Company and its successors and assigns, whether by merger, consolidation,
reorganization, sale of assets, or otherwise. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of Grantee’s legal representatives. All obligations imposed upon Grantee and
all rights granted to the Company under this Agreement shall be final, binding, and conclusive upon Grantee’s heirs, executors, administrators, and successors.

11. Resolution of Disputes

Any dispute or disagreement which may arise under, or as a result of, or in any way relate to the interpretation, construction, or application of this
Agreement shall be determined by the Committee. Any determination made hereunder shall be final, binding, and conclusive on Grantee and the Company for all
purposes.
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12. Pronouns; Including

Wherever appropriate in this Agreement, personal pronouns shall be deemed to include the other genders and the singular to include the plural.
Wherever used in this Agreement, the term “including” means “including, without limitation.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

ATTEST: ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
By:

C. Dan Smith Vernon J. Nagel,

Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
GRANTEE:

<<First_Name>><<Middle_Name>><<Last_Name>>



EXHIBIT A
CONFIDENTIALITY, INVENTIONS, NON-SOLICITATION
AND NON-COMPETITION PROVISIONS

1. Definitions.

a. “Confidential Information” means any information, without regard to form, relating to the Company or its subsidiaries’ (“Protected Parties”) clients,
operations, finances, and business that is treated as confidential, whether or not it is marked or identified as “confidential,” including but not limited to technical
or non-technical data, compilations (including compilations of customer, supplier, or vendor information), programs, methods, devices, techniques, processes,
financial data, pricing methodology, formulas, patterns, strategies, studies, business development, software systems, marketing techniques and lists of actual or
potential customers (including identifying information about customers), whether or not in writing. Confidential Information includes information disclosed to the
Protected Parties by third parties, and to which the Protected Parties have an obligation to maintain said information as confidential. Confidential Information
shall not include: (a) information generally available to the public other than as a result of improper disclosure by Employee; (b) information that becomes
available to Employee from a source other than the Protected Parties (provided that such information was not obtained from a source in breach of a duty to the
Protected Parties); or (c) information disclosed pursuant to law, regulations or pursuant to a subpoena, court order or legal process.

b. “Trade Secrets” has the meaning set forth under applicable Delaware law, which relates to information that derives economic value, actual or potential,
from not being generally known to other persons or entities.

c. “Customers” means customers of the Protected Parties with whom Employee had material contact on behalf of the Protected Parties during the two-year
period preceding the termination of Employee’s employment with the Protected Parties.

d. “Protected Parties’ Business” means the manufacture and/or sale of one or more of the following classes of product: lighting fixtures, electric linear
modular lighting systems comprised of plug-in relocatable modular wiring components, emergency lighting fixtures and systems (including but not limited to exit
signs, emergency light units, back-up power battery packs, and combinations thereof), battery powered lighting fixtures, electric lighting track units, hardware for
mounting and hanging electrical lighting fixtures, LED replacement light emitting diode tubes, aluminum, steel and fiberglass fixture poles for electric lighting,
light fixture lenses, sound and electromagnetic wave receivers and transmitters, flexible wiring systems and components (namely, flexible branch circuits,
attachment plugs, receptacles, connectors and fittings), emergency lighting unit inverters, electrical lighting controls, electrical dimming controllers and light
switches for electric fixtures, dimming units (comprised of cabinets, control stations and wiring for control of electrical lighting fixtures and electric loads),
electronic sensing devices (namely, ultrasonic occupancy sensors and range extenders for lighting energy management), lighting control systems (including but
not limited to dimmers, low voltage
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switches, programmable lighting controllers, lighting energy management occupancy sensors and timers, and range extenders for energy management), and any
wireless communications and monitoring hardware or software related to the above.

e. “Direct Competitor” means the following entities: (1) Cooper Lighting; (2) Cree, Inc./LED Lighting Fixtures; (3) General Electric Company; (4) Hubbell
Lighting, Inc.; (5) Royal Philips Electronics/The Genlyte Group; (6) Schneider Electric/Juno Lighting; (7) Siemens/Osram Sylvania; and (8) H.E. Williams;
together with any of their respective affiliates, subsidiaries and/or parent companies that are either located or transact business within the United States of
America, but only to the extent each engages in the manufacture and/or sale of one or more classes of products which are competitive with the Protected Parties’
Business.

f. “Employee Services” means the duties for the job that Employee held in the twelve (12) months prior to his or her termination.

g. “Territory” means the territory of the United States. Employee acknowledges that the Protected Parties are licensed to do business and in fact do business
in all fifty states in the United States. Employee further acknowledges that the services he or she performs on behalf of the Protected Parties, including the
Employee Services, are at a managerial level and are not limited in their territorial scope to any particular city, state, or region, but instead have nationwide
impact throughout the United States. Employee further acknowledges and agrees that: (a) the Protected Parties’ Business is, at the very least, national in scope;
and (b) these restrictions are reasonable and necessary to protect the Confidential Information, Trade Secrets, business relationships, and goodwill of the Protected
Parties.

h. “Termination for Cause” shall mean the involuntary termination of Employee by the Protected Parties for the following reasons:
a. If termination shall have been the result of an act or acts by Employee which constitute a felony or any crime involving dishonesty, theft, fraud or

moral turpitude;

b. If termination shall have been the result of an act or acts by Employee which are in the good faith judgment of the Protected Parties to be in
violation of law or of written policies of the Protected Parties and which result in injury to the Protected Parties;

c. If termination shall have been the result of an act or acts of dishonesty by Employee resulting or intended to result directly or indirectly in gain or
personal enrichment to Employee at the expense of the Protected Parties; or

d. Upon the willful and continued failure by Employee to substantially perform the duties reasonably assigned to Employee given Employee’s
training and experience (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to mental or physical illness not constituting a disability), after a demand in
writing for substantial performance of such duties is delivered by the Protected Parties, which demand specifically identifies the manner in which the Protected
Parties believe that Employee has not substantially performed his or her duties and such failure results in injury to the Protected Parties.
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i. “Inventions” and “Works For Hire.” The term “Invention” means any discoveries, developments, innovations, improvements, concepts or ideas, whether
patentable or not, that are (a) in any way connected with Employee’s employment, or (b) related to business, research, development, design or manufacturing
efforts in which the Protected Parties are engaged during the period of Employee’s employment, or in which the Protected Parties demonstrably anticipate being
engaged. The term “Works For Hire” (“Works”) means all documents, programs, software, creative works and other expressions and information in any tangible
medium created, in whole or in part, by Employee during the period of and relating to his/her employment with the Protected Parties, whether copyrightable or
otherwise protectable, other than Inventions.

2. Confidentiality, Inventions, Non-Solicitation and Non-Competition.

a. Purpose and Reasonableness of Provisions. Employee acknowledges that, prior to and during the Term of this Agreement, Protected Parties have
furnished and will furnish to Employee Trade Secrets and Confidential Information, which, if used by Employee on behalf of a competitor of the Protected Parties
or other person, could cause the Protected Parties substantial harm. Moreover, the parties recognize that Employee, during the course of his or her employment
with the Protected Parties, has and will develop important relationships with customers and others having valuable business relationships with the Protected
Parties. In view of the foregoing, Employee acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained in this Section 2 are reasonably necessary to protect the
Protected Parties’ legitimate business interests, Confidential Information, and good will.

b. Return of Confidential Information and Trade Secrets. Upon request by the Protected Parties, and in any event upon termination of Employee’s
employment with the Protected Parties for any reason, Employee will promptly deliver to the Protected Parties all property belonging to the Protected Parties,
including, without limitation, all Confidential Information and Trade Secrets and all embodiments thereof then in Employee’s custody, control or possession.

c. Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information and Trade Secrets. Except to the extent necessary to perform services on behalf of the Protected Parties,
during the term of employment and for a period of four (4) years following the termination of Employee’s employment with the Company for any reason,
Employee will not copy, reproduce, use, distribute, disclose or otherwise disseminate Confidential Information, or any physical embodiments thereof, and will in
no event take any action causing, or fail to take any action necessary in order to prevent, any Confidential Information disclosed to or developed by Employee to
lose its character or cease to be Confidential Information (as defined above). Employee will take all reasonable steps to ensure that each reproduction, summary,
extract or analysis of any of the Confidential Information will be marked prominently with a legend identifying its confidential or proprietary status.

Trade secrets will be protected for as long as they are treated as “Trade Secrets” in accordance with Delaware law. Therefore, information that rises to the
level of a Trade Secret should be handled in the same manner as Confidential Information, as described in the paragraph above, on an indefinite basis.
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Employee, during employment with the Protected Parties, will not offer, disclose or use on Employee’s own behalf or on behalf of the Protected Parties,
any information Employee received prior to employment by the Protected Parties, which was supplied to Employee confidentially or which Employee should
reasonably know to be confidential.

d. Inventions and Works for Hire. Employee will disclose promptly to the Protected Parties, and only to the Protected Parties, (a) all Inventions (developed
alone or with others) conceived or made during the period of, or as a consequence of, Employee’s employment with the Protected Parties, and (b) all Works
created by Employee, alone or jointly with others. Employee will promptly provide the Protected Parties with all records or documents pertaining to any such
Inventions or Works. Except as otherwise specifically provided below, Employee assigns to the Protected Parties, its successors, assigns or nominees, all his/her
rights to any Inventions conceived or made during the period of, or as a consequence of, Employee’s employment with the Protected Parties. Employee’s work on
and contributions to any Works will be rendered and made by Employee for, at the instigation of, and under the overall direction of, the Protected Parties, and the
Works are intended to be and will be “works made for hire” as that term is used in the United States copyright laws. If for any reason the Works are held not to be
“works made for hire”, Employee assigns to the Protected Parties all of Employee’s right, title, and interest in such Works, and in all copyrights in the Works.
Employee will, at any time during or subsequent to employment, cooperate with the Protected Parties, at the Protected Parties’ expense, and sign all papers
deemed necessary by the Protected Parties to enable the Protected Parties to obtain, maintain, protect, enforce and defend patents covering such Inventions or
copyrights in such Works, and to enable the Protected Parties to establish, evidence, and confirm its complete, exclusive, perpetual, and worldwide ownership of
all rights, titles, and interests of every kind and nature, in and to the Inventions and the Works. Employee irrevocably appoints the Protected Parties as its agent to
execute and deliver any assignments or documents that Employee fails or refuses to execute and deliver promptly. This power and agency is coupled with an
interest and is irrevocable.

e. Non-Solicitation of Customers. Employee agrees that during the course of his or her employment with the Protected Parties, and for eighteen
(18) months after the last day of his or her employment with the Protected Parties, Employee will not directly or indirectly solicit Customers (as defined in
paragraph 1(c) above) for the purpose of providing goods and services competitive (as defined herein) with the Protected Parties’ Business. For the purpose of
this section, “competitive” shall mean any goods and services within the definition of the Protected Parties’ Business as set forth above, or any goods and services
that are substitutable for the goods and services within the definition of the Protected Parties’ Business.

f. Non-Solicitation of Employees. During the term of employment by the Protected Parties and for a period of eighteen (18) months following the
termination of such employment for any reason, Employee shall not, either directly or indirectly, on Employee’s own behalf or on behalf of any other person or
entity, solicit or attempt to solicit away from employment by the Protected Parties any person employed by the Protected Parties, with whom Employee had
regular contact in the course of Employee’s employment by the Protected Parties, for the purpose
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of having such person perform duties similar to those performed by such person for or on behalf of the Protected Parties. The provisions of this paragraph shall
only apply to those persons employed by the Protected Parties at the time of solicitation or attempted solicitation.

g. Non-Competition. In the event that Employee voluntarily resigns from the Protected Parties or is Terminated for Cause (as defined above), Employee
agrees that during the course of his or her employment and for six (6) months after the last day of his or her employment with the Protected Parties, he or she will
not, directly or indirectly, engage in, provide, or perform any Employee Services on behalf of any Direct Competitor in the Territory. This provision will not
trigger if Employee is terminated as a result of a Reduction in Force or is terminated by the Protected Parties without Cause.

h. Injunctive Relief. Employee acknowledges that if he or she breaches or threatens to breach any of the provisions of this Section 2, his or her actions may
cause irreparable harm and damage to the Protected Parties which may not be compensated by damages alone. Accordingly, if Employee breaches or threatens to
breach any of the provisions of this Section 2, the Protected Parties shall be entitled to seek injunctive relief, in addition to any other rights or remedies the
Protected Parties may have. The existence of any claim or cause of action by Employee against the Protected Parties, whether predicated on this Agreement or
otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by the Protected Parties of Employee’s agreements under this Section 2.

3. Contract Non-Assignable by Employee. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement has been entered into due to, among other things, the special
skills and knowledge of Employee, and agree that this Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by Employee.

4. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly given when delivered or seven days after mailing if mailed first class, certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

If to the Protected Parties: Acuity Brands, Inc.
Attention: Corporate Secretary
1170 Peachtree Street, NE
Suite 2400
Atlanta, Georgia 30309-7676

If to Employee: To his or her last known address on file with the Company.

Any party may change the address to which notices, requests, demands and other communications shall be delivered or mailed by giving notice thereof to
the other party in the same manner provided herein.

5. Provisions Severable. If any provision or covenant, or any part thereof, contained in this Exhibit A is held by any court to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, either in whole or in part, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect the validity, legality or
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enforceability of the remaining provisions or covenants, or any part thereof, in this Exhibit A, all of which shall remain in full force and effect. To the extent that
other agreements applicable to Employee include provisions that conflict with the provisions contained in this Exhibit A, the provisions that are more restrictive
on Employee will control.

6. Waiver. Failure of either party to insist, in one or more instances, on performance by the other in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of any right granted in this Agreement or the future performance of any such term or condition or of
any other term or condition of this Agreement, unless such waiver is contained in a writing signed by the party making the waiver.

7. Legal Fees. If Employee or the Protected Parties find it necessary to employ legal counsel or to bring an action at law or other proceedings against the
other party to enforce any of the terms of this Agreement, the party prevailing in any such action or other proceeding shall be promptly paid by the other party its
reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, litigation expenses, all as determined by the court and not a jury, and such payment shall be made by the non-prevailing
party to the prevailing party no later than sixty (60) days after the date on which the payment amount becomes known and payable. Except as provided in the
preceding sentence, each party shall pay its own legal fees and other expenses associated with any dispute under this Agreement.
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Exhibit 10(h)

ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of <<Grant_Date>> by and between Acuity Brands, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, (the “Company”) and
<<First_Name>> <<Middle_Name>><<Last_Name>> (“Grantee” or “Employee”).

RECITALS

A. The Company maintains the Acuity Brands, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), and Grantee has been selected by the Committee to receive a
Restricted Stock Award under the Plan;

B. As a condition to this Restricted Stock Award, Grantee agrees to be bound by the confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and non-competition
provisions set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, in consideration for receipt of the Restricted Stock award pursuant hereto, continued
employment, and other good and valuable consideration.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED, by and between the Company and Grantee, as follows:
1. Award of Restricted Stock
1.1 The Company hereby grants to Grantee an award of <<Shares_Granted>> Shares of restricted stock (“Restricted Stock”), subject to, and in accordance

with, the restrictions, terms, and conditions set forth in this Agreement. The grant date of this award of Restricted Stock is <<Grant Date>> (the “Grant_Date”).

1.2 This Agreement (including any appendices or exhibits) shall be construed in accordance with, and subject to, the provisions of the Plan (the provisions
of which are incorporated herein by reference) and, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the
same definitions as set forth in the Plan.

1.3 This award of Restricted Stock is conditioned upon Grantee’s acceptance of the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A, as evidenced by Grantee’s
execution of this Agreement or by Grantee’s electronic acceptance of the Agreement in a manner and during the time period allowed by the Company. If the terms
of this Agreement are not timely accepted by execution or by such electronic means, the award of Restricted Stock may be cancelled by the Committee.
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2. Restrictions

2.1 Subject to Sections 2.3, 2.5, and 2.6 below, if the Grantee remains employed by the Company, the Restricted Stock shall vest as follows:

Number of Shares Vesting Date
<<Shrs_Vest_1>> <<Date_Vest_1>>
<<Shrs_Vest_2>> <<Date_Vest_2>>
<<Shrs_Vest_3>> <<Date_Vest_3>>
<<Shrs_Vest_4>> <<Date_Vest_4>>

For purposes of this Agreement, employment with a Subsidiary of the Company or service as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company shall be
considered employment with the Company.

2.2 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, including Exhibit A attached hereto, on each Vesting Date, Grantee shall own the Vested Shares of
Restricted Stock free and clear of all restrictions imposed by this Agreement (except those imposed by Section 3.4 below). The Company shall transfer the Vested
Shares of Restricted Stock to an unrestricted account in the name of the Grantee as soon as practical after each Vesting Date.

2.3 In the event, prior to the Vesting Date, (i) Grantee dies while actively employed by the Company, or (ii) Grantee has his or her employment terminated
by reason of Disability, any Restricted Stock shall become fully vested and nonforfeitable as of the date of Grantee’s death or Disability. The Company shall
transfer the Shares of Restricted Stock, free and clear of any restrictions imposed by this Agreement (except for Section 3.4) to Grantee (or, in the event of death,
his or her surviving spouse or, if none, to his or her estate) as soon as practical after his or her date of death or termination for Disability.

2.4 In exchange for receipt of consideration in the form of the Restricted Stock award pursuant to this Agreement, continued employment, and other good
and valuable consideration, Grantee agrees that Grantee shall comply with the confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and non-competition provisions
attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2.5 Except for death or Disability as provided in Section 2.3, or except as otherwise provided in a severance agreement with Grantee, if Grantee terminates
his or her employment or if the Company terminates Grantee prior to the Vesting Date, the Restricted Stock shall cease to vest further, the unvested Shares of
Restricted Stock shall be immediately forfeited, and Grantee shall only be entitled to the Restricted Stock that has vested as of his or her date of termination.

2.6 Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Agreement, in the event of a Change in Control prior to the Vesting Date, all Shares of Restricted Stock
shall become fully vested and nonforfeitable as of the date of the Change in Control. The Company shall transfer the Shares of Restricted Stock that become
vested pursuant to this Section 2.6 to an unrestricted account in the name of Grantee as soon as practical after the date of the Change in Control.

2.7 The Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, or otherwise encumbered prior to the date Grantee becomes vested in the
Restricted Stock.
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3. Stock; Dividends; Voting

3.1 The Restricted Stock shall be registered in the name of Grantee as of the respective Grant Date for such Shares of Restricted Stock. The Company may
issue stock certificates or evidence Grantee’s interest by using a restricted book entry account with the Company’s transfer agent. Physical possession or custody
of any stock certificates that are issued shall be retained by the Company until such time as the Shares are vested in accordance with Section 2. The Company
reserves the right to place a legend on such stock certificate(s) restricting the transferability of such certificates and referring to the terms and conditions
(including forfeiture) of this Agreement and the Plan.

3.2 During the period the Restricted Stock is not vested, the Grantee shall be entitled to receive dividends or similar distributions declared on such
Restricted Stock and Grantee shall be entitled to vote such Restricted Stock.

3.3 In the event of a Change in Capitalization, the number and class of Shares or other securities that Grantee shall be entitled to, and shall hold, pursuant to
this Agreement shall be appropriately adjusted or changed to reflect the Change in Capitalization, provided that any such additional Shares or additional or
different shares or securities shall remain subject to the restrictions in this Agreement.

3.4 Grantee represents and warrants that he or she is acquiring the Restricted Stock for investment purposes only, and not with a view to distribution
thereof. Grantee is aware that the Restricted Stock may not be registered under the federal or any state securities laws and that in that event, in addition to the
other restrictions on the Shares, they will not be able to be transferred unless an exemption from registration is available or the Shares are registered. By making
this award of Restricted Stock, the Company is not undertaking any obligation to register the Restricted Stock under any federal or state securities laws.

4.  No Right to Continued Employment or Additional Grants

Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall be interpreted or construed to confer upon Grantee any right with respect to continuance of employment
by the Company or a subsidiary, nor shall this Agreement or the Plan interfere in any way with the right of the Company or a Subsidiary to terminate Grantee’s
employment at any time. The Plan may be terminated at any time, and even if the Plan is not terminated, Grantee shall not be entitled to any additional awards
under the Plan.

5.  Taxes and Withholding

Grantee shall be responsible for all federal, state, and local income taxes payable with respect to this award of Restricted Stock and dividends paid
on unvested Restricted Stock. Grantee shall have the right to make such elections under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as are available in
connection with this award of Restricted Stock. The Company and Grantee agree to report the value of the Restricted Stock in a consistent manner for federal
income tax purposes. The Company shall have the right to retain and withhold from any payment of Restricted Stock or cash the amount of taxes required by any
government to be withheld or otherwise deducted and paid with respect to such payment. At its discretion, the
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Company may require Grantee to reimburse the Company for any such taxes required to be withheld and may withhold any distribution in whole or in part until
the Company is so reimbursed. In lieu thereof, the Company shall have the right to withhold from any other cash amounts due to Grantee an amount equal to such
taxes required to be withheld or withhold and cancel (in whole or in part) a number of shares of Restricted Stock having a market value not less than the amount
of such taxes.

6. Grantee Bound by the Plan

Grantee hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and the prospectus for the Plan, and agrees to be bound by all the terms and provisions
thereof.

7.  Modification of Agreement

This Agreement may be modified, amended, suspended, or terminated, and any terms or conditions may be waived, but only by mutual agreement of
the parties in writing.

8. Severability

Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected by such holding and shall continue in full force in accordance with their terms.

9. Governing Law

The validity, interpretation, construction, and performance of this Agreement and Exhibit A shall be governed by the laws of the state of Delaware
without giving effect to the conflicts of laws principles thereof.

10. Successors in Interest

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the Company and its successors and assigns, whether by merger, consolidation,
reorganization, sale of assets, or otherwise. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of Grantee’s legal representatives. All obligations imposed upon Grantee and
all rights granted to the Company under this Agreement shall be final, binding, and conclusive upon Grantee’s heirs, executors, administrators, and successors.

11. Resolution of Disputes

Any dispute or disagreement which may arise under, or as a result of, or in any way relate to the interpretation, construction, or application of this
Agreement shall be determined by the Committee. Any determination made hereunder shall be final, binding, and conclusive on Grantee and the Company for all
purposes.
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12. Pronouns; Including

Wherever appropriate in this Agreement, personal pronouns shall be deemed to include the other genders and the singular to include the plural.
Wherever used in this Agreement, the term “including” means “including, without limitation.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

ATTEST: ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
By:

C. Dan Smith Vernon J. Nagel,

Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
GRANTEE:

<<First_Name>><<Middle_ Name>><<Last_Name>>



EXHIBIT A
CONFIDENTIALITY, INVENTIONS, NON-SOLICITATION
AND NON-COMPETITION PROVISIONS

1. Definitions.

a. “Confidential Information” means any information, without regard to form, relating to the Company or its subsidiaries’ (“Protected Parties”) clients,
operations, finances, and business that is treated as confidential, whether or not it is marked or identified as “confidential,” including but not limited to technical
or non-technical data, compilations (including compilations of customer, supplier, or vendor information), programs, methods, devices, techniques, processes,
financial data, pricing methodology, formulas, patterns, strategies, studies, business development, software systems, marketing techniques and lists of actual or
potential customers (including identifying information about customers), whether or not in writing. Confidential Information includes information disclosed to the
Protected Parties by third parties, and to which the Protected Parties have an obligation to maintain said information as confidential. Confidential Information
shall not include: (a) information generally available to the public other than as a result of improper disclosure by Employee; (b) information that becomes
available to Employee from a source other than the Protected Parties (provided that such information was not obtained from a source in breach of a duty to the
Protected Parties); or (c) information disclosed pursuant to law, regulations or pursuant to a subpoena, court order or legal process.

b. “Trade Secrets” has the meaning set forth under applicable Delaware law, which relates to information that derives economic value, actual or potential,
from not being generally known to other persons or entities.

c. “Customers” means customers of the Protected Parties with whom Employee had material contact on behalf of the Protected Parties during the two-year
period preceding the termination of Employee’s employment with the Protected Parties.

d. “Protected Parties’ Business” means the manufacture and/or sale of one or more of the following classes of product: lighting fixtures, electric linear
modular lighting systems comprised of plug-in relocatable modular wiring components, emergency lighting fixtures and systems (including but not limited to exit
signs, emergency light units, back-up power battery packs, and combinations thereof), battery powered lighting fixtures, electric lighting track units, hardware for
mounting and hanging electrical lighting fixtures, LED replacement light emitting diode tubes, aluminum, steel and fiberglass fixture poles for electric lighting,
light fixture lenses, sound and electromagnetic wave receivers and transmitters, flexible wiring systems and components (namely, flexible branch circuits,
attachment plugs, receptacles, connectors and fittings), emergency lighting unit inverters, electrical lighting controls, electrical dimming controllers and light
switches for electric fixtures, dimming units (comprised of cabinets, control stations and wiring for control of electrical lighting fixtures and electric loads),
electronic and other sensing devices (including occupancy sensors and range extenders for lighting or other energy management), lighting control systems
(including but not limited to dimmers, low voltage
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switches, programmable lighting controllers, lighting energy management occupancy sensors and timers, and range extenders for energy management), building
management and control, and any wireless communications and monitoring hardware or software related to the above.

e. “Direct Competitor” means the following entities: (1) Cooper Lighting; (2) Cree, Inc./LED Lighting Fixtures; (3) General Electric Company; (4) Hubbell
Lighting, Inc.; (5) Royal Philips Electronics/The Genlyte Group; (6) Schneider Electric/Juno Lighting; (7) Siemens/Osram Sylvania; (8) H.E. Williams;
(9) Wattstopper; (10) Leviton; (11) Lutron; (12) Crestron; (13) AMX; (14) Heath Zenith; (15) Panasonic; (16) Orion; (17) Honeywell and (18) Johnson Controls,
Inc., together with any of their respective affiliates, subsidiaries and/or parent companies that are either located or transact business within the United States of
America, but only to the extent each engages in the manufacture and/or sale of one or more classes of products which are competitive with the Protected Parties’
Business.

f. “Employee Services” means the duties for the job that Employee held in the twelve (12) months prior to his or her termination.

g. “Territory” means the territory of the United States. Employee acknowledges that the Protected Parties are licensed to do business and in fact do business
in all fifty states in the United States. Employee further acknowledges that the services he or she performs on behalf of the Protected Parties, including the
Employee Services, are at a managerial level and are not limited in their territorial scope to any particular city, state, or region, but instead have nationwide
impact throughout the United States. Employee further acknowledges and agrees that: (a) the Protected Parties’ Business is, at the very least, national in scope;
and (b) these restrictions are reasonable and necessary to protect the Confidential Information, Trade Secrets, business relationships, and goodwill of the Protected
Parties.

h. “Termination for Cause” shall mean the involuntary termination of Employee by the Protected Parties for the following reasons:
a. If termination shall have been the result of an act or acts by Employee which constitute a felony or any crime involving dishonesty, theft, fraud or

moral turpitude;

b. If termination shall have been the result of an act or acts by Employee which are in the good faith judgment of the Protected Parties to be in
violation of law or of written policies of the Protected Parties and which result in injury to the Protected Parties;

c. If termination shall have been the result of an act or acts of dishonesty by Employee resulting or intended to result directly or indirectly in gain or
personal enrichment to Employee at the expense of the Protected Parties; or

d. Upon the willful and continued failure by Employee to substantially perform the duties reasonably assigned to Employee given Employee’s
training and experience (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to mental or physical illness not constituting a disability), after a demand in
writing for substantial performance of such duties is delivered by the Protected Parties, which demand specifically identifies the manner in which the Protected
Parties believe that Employee has not substantially performed his or her duties and such failure results in injury to the Protected Parties.
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i. “Inventions” and “Works For Hire.” The term “Invention” means any discoveries, developments, innovations, improvements, concepts or ideas, whether
patentable or not, that are (a) in any way connected with Employee’s employment, or (b) related to business, research, development, design or manufacturing
efforts in which the Protected Parties are engaged during the period of Employee’s employment, or in which the Protected Parties demonstrably anticipate being
engaged. The term “Works For Hire” (“Works”) means all documents, programs, software, creative works and other expressions and information in any tangible
medium created, in whole or in part, by Employee during the period of and relating to his/her employment with the Protected Parties, whether copyrightable or
otherwise protectable, other than Inventions.

2. Confidentiality, Inventions, Non-Solicitation and Non-Competition.

a. Purpose and Reasonableness of Provisions. Employee acknowledges that, prior to and during the Term of this Agreement, Protected Parties have
furnished and will furnish to Employee Trade Secrets and Confidential Information, which, if used by Employee on behalf of a competitor of the Protected Parties
or other person, could cause the Protected Parties substantial harm. Moreover, the parties recognize that Employee, during the course of his or her employment
with the Protected Parties, has and will develop important relationships with customers and others having valuable business relationships with the Protected
Parties. In view of the foregoing, Employee acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained in this Section 2 are reasonably necessary to protect the
Protected Parties’ legitimate business interests, Confidential Information, and good will.

b. Return of Confidential Information and Trade Secrets. Upon request by the Protected Parties, and in any event upon termination of Employee’s
employment with the Protected Parties for any reason, Employee will promptly deliver to the Protected Parties all property belonging to the Protected Parties,
including, without limitation, all Confidential Information and Trade Secrets and all embodiments thereof then in Employee’s custody, control or possession.

c. Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information and Trade Secrets. Except to the extent necessary to perform services on behalf of the Protected Parties,
during the term of employment and for a period of four (4) years following the termination of Employee’s employment with the Company for any reason,
Employee will not copy, reproduce, use, distribute, disclose or otherwise disseminate Confidential Information, or any physical embodiments thereof, and will in
no event take any action causing, or fail to take any action necessary in order to prevent, any Confidential Information disclosed to or developed by Employee to
lose its character or cease to be Confidential Information (as defined above). Employee will take all reasonable steps to ensure that each reproduction, summary,
extract or analysis of any of the Confidential Information will be marked prominently with a legend identifying its confidential or proprietary status.
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Trade secrets will be protected for as long as they are treated as “Trade Secrets” in accordance with Delaware law. Therefore, information that rises to the
level of a Trade Secret should be handled in the same manner as Confidential Information, as described in the paragraph above, on an indefinite basis.

d. Inventions and Works for Hire. Employee will disclose promptly to the Protected Parties, and only to the Protected Parties, (a) all Inventions (developed
alone or with others) conceived or made during the period of, or as a consequence of, Employee’s employment with the Protected Parties, and (b) all Works
created by Employee, alone or jointly with others. Employee will promptly provide the Protected Parties with all records or documents pertaining to any such
Inventions or Works. Except as otherwise specifically provided below, Employee assigns to the Protected Parties, its successors, assigns or nominees, all his/her
rights to any Inventions conceived or made during the period of, or as a consequence of, Employee’s employment with the Protected Parties. Employee’s work on
and contributions to any Works will be rendered and made by Employee for, at the instigation of, and under the overall direction of, the Protected Parties, and the
Works are intended to be and will be “works made for hire” as that term is used in the United States copyright laws. If for any reason the Works are held not to be
“works made for hire”, Employee assigns to the Protected Parties all of Employee’s right, title, and interest in such Works, and in all copyrights in the Works.
Employee will, at any time during or subsequent to employment, cooperate with the Protected Parties, at the Protected Parties’ expense, and sign all papers
deemed necessary by the Protected Parties to enable the Protected Parties to obtain, maintain, protect, enforce and defend patents covering such Inventions or
copyrights in such Works, and to enable the Protected Parties to establish, evidence, and confirm its complete, exclusive, perpetual, and worldwide ownership of
all rights, titles, and interests of every kind and nature, in and to the Inventions and the Works. Employee irrevocably appoints the Protected Parties as its agent to
execute and deliver any assignments or documents that Employee fails or refuses to execute and deliver promptly. This power and agency is coupled with an
interest and is irrevocable.

e. Non-Solicitation of Customers. Employee agrees that during the course of his or her employment with the Protected Parties, and for eighteen
(18) months after the last day of his or her employment with the Protected Parties, Employee will not directly or indirectly solicit Customers (as defined in
paragraph 1(c) above) for the purpose of providing goods and services competitive (as defined herein) with the Protected Parties’ Business. For the purpose of
this section, “competitive” shall mean any goods and services within the definition of the Protected Parties’ Business as set forth above, or any goods and services
that are substitutable for the goods and services within the definition of the Protected Parties’ Business.

f. Non-Solicitation of Employees. During the term of employment by the Protected Parties and for a period of eighteen (18) months following the
termination of such employment for any reason, Employee shall not, either directly or indirectly, on Employee’s own behalf or on behalf of any other person or
entity, solicit or attempt to solicit away from employment by the Protected Parties any person employed by the Protected Parties, with whom Employee had
regular contact in the course of Employee’s employment by the Protected Parties, for the purpose of having such person perform duties similar to those performed
by such person for or on behalf of the Protected Parties. The provisions of this paragraph shall only apply to those persons employed by the Protected Parties at
the time of solicitation or attempted solicitation.
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g. Non-Competition. In the event that Employee voluntarily resigns from the Protected Parties or is Terminated for Cause (as defined above), Employee
agrees that during the course of his or her employment and for six (6) months after the last day of his or her employment with the Protected Parties, he or she will
not, directly or indirectly, engage in, provide, or perform any Employee Services on behalf of any Direct Competitor in the Territory. This provision will not
trigger if Employee is terminated as a result of a Reduction in Force or is terminated by the Protected Parties without Cause.

h. Injunctive Relief. Employee acknowledges that if he or she breaches or threatens to breach any of the provisions of this Section 2, his or her actions may
cause irreparable harm and damage to the Protected Parties which may not be compensated by damages alone. Accordingly, if Employee breaches or threatens to
breach any of the provisions of this Section 2, the Protected Parties shall be entitled to seek injunctive relief, in addition to any other rights or remedies the
Protected Parties may have. The existence of any claim or cause of action by Employee against the Protected Parties, whether predicated on this Agreement or
otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by the Protected Parties of Employee’s agreements under this Section 2.

3. Contract Non-Assignable by Employee. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement has been entered into due to, among other things, the special
skills and knowledge of Employee, and agree that this Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by Employee.

4. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly given when delivered or seven days after mailing if mailed first class, certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

If to the Protected Parties: Acuity Brands, Inc.
Attention: Corporate Secretary
1170 Peachtree Street, NE
Suite 2400
Atlanta, Georgia 30309-7676

If to Employee: To his or her last known address on file with the Company.

Any party may change the address to which notices, requests, demands and other communications shall be delivered or mailed by giving notice thereof to
the other party in the same manner provided herein.

5. Provisions Severable. If any provision or covenant, or any part thereof, contained in this Exhibit A is held by any court to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, either in whole or in part, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining
provisions or covenants, or any part thereof, in this Exhibit A, all of which shall remain in full force and effect. To the extent that other agreements applicable to
Employee include provisions that conflict with the provisions contained in this Exhibit A, the provisions that are more restrictive on Employee will control.
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6. Waiver. Failure of either party to insist, in one or more instances, on performance by the other in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of any right granted in this Agreement or the future performance of any such term or condition or of
any other term or condition of this Agreement, unless such waiver is contained in a writing signed by the party making the waiver.

7. Legal Fees. If Employee or the Protected Parties find it necessary to employ legal counsel or to bring an action at law or other proceedings against the
other party to enforce any of the terms of this Agreement, the party prevailing in any such action or other proceeding shall be promptly paid by the other party its
reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, litigation expenses, all as determined by the court and not a jury, and such payment shall be made by the non-prevailing
party to the prevailing party no later than sixty (60) days after the date on which the payment amount becomes known and payable. Except as provided in the
preceding sentence, each party shall pay its own legal fees and other expenses associated with any dispute under this Agreement.
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Exhibit 10(i)

NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
FOR KEY EMPLOYEES

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of <<Grant_Date>> (the “Grant Date”), between Acuity Brands, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and
<<First_Name>> <<Middle_Name>> <<Last_Name>> (the “Optionee”).

WHEREAS, the Company has adopted the amended and restated Acuity Brands, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective as of October 25, 2007 (the
“Plan”), in order to provide additional incentives to certain officers and key employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries; and

WHEREAS, the Optionee performs services for the Company and/or one of its Subsidiaries; and

WHEREAS, the Company and Optionee have determined that Optionee shall enter into certain confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and non-
competition provisions, which are attached to the Optionee’s <<Date>> Restricted Stock Award Agreement as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, in
consideration for receipt of the Nonqualified Stock Option award pursuant hereto, continued employment, and other good and valuable consideration, and;

WHEREAS, the Committee responsible for administration of the Plan has determined to grant the Option to the Optionee as provided herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Grant of Option.

1.1 The Company hereby grants to the Optionee the right and option (the “Option”) to purchase all or any part of an aggregate of
<<Options_Granted>> whole Shares subject to, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Plan.

1.2 The Option is not intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code.

1.3 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance and consistent with, and subject to, the provisions of the Plan (the provisions of which are
incorporated herein by reference) and, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the same definitions
as set forth in the Plan.

1.4 The Option is conditioned upon Optionee’s execution of this Agreement and the terms of the confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and
non-competition provisions attached to the Optionee’s Restricted Stock Award Agreement as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. If the Agreement
and the <<Date>> Retricted Stock Award (including Exhibit A) are not accepted by the Optionee in the manner and within the time period specified by the
Company, the Option may be canceled by the Committee.



2. Purchase Price.

The price at which the Optionee shall be entitled to purchase Shares upon the exercise of the Option shall be <<Option_Price>> per Share.

3. Duration of Option.

The Option shall be exercisable to the extent and in the manner provided herein for a period of ten (10) years from the Grant Date (the “Exercise
Term”); provided, however, that the Option may be earlier terminated as provided in Sections 1.4 and 6 hereof.

4. Vesting and Exercisability of Option.

The Option shall vest, and may be exercised, with respect to the Shares as set forth in the Optionee Statement attached hereto and made a part hereof,
subject to earlier termination of the Option as provided in Sections 1.4 and 6 hereof or in the Plan. The right to purchase the Shares as they become vested shall be
cumulative and shall continue during the Exercise Term unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

5. Manner of Exercise and Payment.

5.1 Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan, the Option may be exercised by either (i) delivery of written or electronic
notice to the Company, at its principal executive office or (ii) online notice given to an online broker with which the Company has made arrangement for the
exercise of employee stock options, which notice satisfies the form and conditions set forth in such arrangement, which shall be provided to the Grantee from
time to time. Such notice shall state that the Optionee is electing to exercise the Option and the number of Shares in respect of which the Option is being
exercised and, if delivered in writing to the Company, shall be signed by the person or persons exercising the Option. If requested by the Committee, such person
or persons shall (i) deliver this Agreement to the Secretary of the Company who shall endorse thereon a notation of such exercise and (ii) provide satisfactory
proof as to the right of such person or persons to exercise the Option.

5.2 The notice of exercise described in Section 5.1 shall be accompanied by the full purchase price for any Shares purchased pursuant to the exercise
of an Option and shall be paid in full upon such exercise, (i) in cash, by check, by transferring Shares to the Company, by attesting to the ownership of Shares,
upon such terms and conditions as may be acceptable to the Committee, or by net settlement of the Option in the manner determined by the Committee, or (ii) by
such arrangement as is made by the Company with the designated online broker. Any Shares the Optionee transfers to the Company or attests to owning as
payment of the purchase price under an Option shall be valued at their Fair Market Value on the day preceding the date of exercise of such Option.

5.3 Upon receipt of notice of exercise and full payment for the Shares in respect of which the Option is being exercised, the Company shall, subject
to Section 16 of the Plan, take such action as may be necessary to effect the transfer to the Optionee of the number of Shares as to which such exercise was
effective.
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5.4 The Optionee shall not be deemed to be the holder of, or to have any of the rights of a holder with respect to any Shares subject to the Option
until (i) the Option shall have been exercised pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and the Optionee shall have paid the full purchase price for the number of
Shares in respect of which the Option was exercised, (ii) the Company shall have issued and delivered the Shares to the Optionee, and (iii) the Optionee’s name
shall have been entered as a stockholder of record on the books of the Company, whereupon the Optionee shall have full voting and other ownership rights with
respect to such Shares.

6. Termination of Employment.
6.1 In General.

If the employment of the Optionee with the Company and its Subsidiaries shall terminate for any reason, other than for the reasons set forth
in Sections 6.2 and 7.2 below, the Option shall continue to be exercisable (to the extent the Option was vested and exercisable on the date of the Optionee’s
termination of employment) at any time within three (3) months after the date of such termination of employment, but in no event after the expiration of the
Exercise Term.

6.2 Termination of Employment Due to Death, Disability, or Retirement.

If the Optionee’s termination of employment is due to death, Disability, or Retirement (termination on or after age 65), or if Optionee
terminates employment after age 55, the following shall apply:

(@ Termination Due To Death. In the event the Optionee dies while actively employed, the Option shall become immediately and fully
exercisable, and shall remain exercisable at any time prior to the end of the Exercise Term, or for one (1) year after the date of death,
whichever period is shorter, by (A) a Permitted Transferee (as defined in Section 8 below), if any, or such person(s) that have acquired the
Optionee’s rights under such Options by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, or (B) if no such person described in (A) exists, the
Optionee’s estate or representative of the Optionee’s estate.

(b) Termination by Disability. In the event the employment of the Optionee is terminated by reason of Disability, the Option shall become
immediately and fully exercisable as of the date the Committee determines the Optionee terminated for Disability and shall remain
exercisable at any time prior to the end of the Exercise Term, or for one (1) year after the date of termination, whichever period is shorter.

(o) Termination by Retirement. In the event the employment of the Optionee is terminated by reason of Retirement, all outstanding unvested
Options shall expire, and any Options vested as of Optionee’s date of Retirement shall remain exercisable at any time prior to the end of the
Exercise Term, or for five (5) years after the date of termination, whichever period is shorter. In the event of the Optionee’s death after
Retirement, the vested Options shall be exercisable in accordance with this subsection (c) and the Option shall be exercisable by the persons
described in (a) above.
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(d) Termination After Attaining Age 55. If the Optionee terminates employment (other than as a result of death or Disability) after attaining age
55 but prior to age 65, all outstanding unvested Options shall expire, and any Options vested as of Optionee’s date of termination shall,
unless the Committee determines otherwise at the time of such termination, remain exercisable at any time prior to the end of the Exercise
Term, or for five (5) years after the date of termination, whichever period is shorter. In the event of the Optionee’s death after terminating
after age 55, the Option shall be exercisable in accordance with this subsection (d) and the Option shall be exercisable by the persons
described in (a) above.

7. Effect of Change in Control.

7.1 Notwithstanding anything contained to the contrary in this Agreement, in the event of a Change in Control, the Option shall become immediately
and fully exercisable, and the Committee, in its discretion, may terminate the Option, provided that at least 30 days prior to the Change in Control, the Committee
notifies the Optionee that the Option will be terminated and provides the Optionee, at the election of the Committee, (i) the right to receive immediately a cash
payment in an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (A) the greater of (x) the Fair Market Value on the date preceding the date of surrender, of the shares subject
to the Option or portion of the Option surrendered, or (y) the Adjusted Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to the Option or portion thereof surrendered, over
(B) the aggregate purchase price for such Shares under the Option; or (ii) the right to exercise all Options (including the Options vested as a result of the Change
in Control) immediately prior to the Change in Control.

7.2 If the Options remain outstanding after the Change in Control and if the employment of the Optionee is terminated within two (2) years
following a Change in Control, all vested Options shall continue to be exercisable at any time within five (5) years after the date of such termination of
employment, but in no event after expiration of the Exercise Term.

8. Transferability.

The Option shall not be transferable other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. During the lifetime of the Optionee, the Option
shall be exercisable only by the Optionee.

9. No Right to Continued Employment.

Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall be interpreted or construed to confer upon the Optionee any right with respect to continuance of
employment by the Company or a Subsidiary, nor shall this Agreement or the Plan interfere in any way with the right of the Company or a Subsidiary to
terminate the Optionee’s employment at any time.
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10. Adjustments.

In the event of a Change in Capitalization, the Committee shall make appropriate adjustments to the number and class of Shares or other stock or
securities subject to the Option and the purchase price for such Shares or other stock or securities. The Committee’s adjustment shall be made in accordance with
the provisions of Section 10 of the Plan and shall be effective and final, binding, and conclusive for all purposes of the Plan and this Agreement.

11. Withholding of Taxes.

The Company shall have the right to deduct from any distribution of cash to the Optionee an amount equal to the federal, state, and local income
taxes and other amounts as may be required by law to be withheld (the “Withholding Taxes”) with respect to the Option. If the Optionee is entitled to receive
Shares upon exercise of the Option, the Optionee shall pay the Withholding Taxes to the Company in cash prior to the issuance of such Shares. In satisfaction of
the Withholding Taxes, the Optionee may make a written election (the “Tax Election”) to have withheld a portion of the Shares issuable to him or her upon
exercise of the Option, having an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the Withholding Taxes, provided that, if the Optionee may be subject to liability under
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the election must comply with the requirements applicable to Share transactions by such Optionees.

12. Employee Bound by the Plan.

The Optionee hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and agrees to be bound by all the terms and provisions thereof.

13. Modification of Agreement.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, suspended, or terminated, and any terms or conditions may be waived, but only by mutual agreement of
the parties in writing.

14. Severability.

Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected by such holding and shall continue in full force in accordance with their terms.

15. Governing Law.

The validity, interpretation, construction, and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Delaware without giving
effect to the conflicts of laws principles thereof.

16. Successors in Interest.

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon each successor corporation. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the
Optionee’s legal representatives. All
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obligations imposed upon the Optionee and all rights granted to the Company under this Agreement shall be final, binding, and conclusive upon the Optionee’s
heirs, executors, Permitted Transferees, administrators, and successors.

17. Resolution of Disputes.

Any dispute or disagreement which may arise under, or as a result of, or in any way relate to, the interpretation, construction, or application of this
Agreement shall be determined by the Committee. Any determination made hereunder shall be final, binding, and conclusive on the Optionee and the Company
for all purposes.

ATTEST: ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
By:

C. Dan Smith Vernon J. Nagel

Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
GRANTEE:

<<First_Name>><<Middle_ Name>><<Last_Name>>
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OPTIONEE STATEMENT

<<FIRST_NAME>><<MIDDLE_NAME>><<LAST_NAME>>

Option Type: <<Option_Type>>
Grant Date: <<Grant_Date>>
Shares Granted: <<Shares_Granted>>
Vesting Dates:

Vest Date Shares Vesting
<<Shrs_Vest_1>> <<Date_Vest_1>>
<<Shrs_Vest_2>> <<Date_Vest_2>>
<<Shrs_Vest_3>> <<Date_Vest_3>>

Expiration Date: <<Expiration_Date>>



Exhibit 10(j)

NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
FOR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF ACUITY BRANDS, INC.

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of <<Grant_Date>> (the “Grant Date”), between Acuity Brands, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and
<<First_Name>> <<Middle_Name>> <<Last_Name>> (the “Optionee”).

WHEREAS, the Company has adopted the amended and restated Acuity Brands, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective as of October 25, 2007 (the
“Plan”), in order to provide additional incentives to certain officers and key employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries; and

WHEREAS, the Optionee performs services for the Company and/or one of its Subsidiaries; and

WHEREAS, the Company and Optionee have determined that Optionee shall enter into certain confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and non-
competition provisions, which are attached to the Optionee’s <<Date>> Restricted Stock Award Agreement as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, in
consideration for receipt of the Nonqualified Stock Option award pursuant hereto, continued employment, and other good and valuable consideration, and;

WHEREAS, the Committee responsible for administration of the Plan has determined to grant the Option to the Optionee as provided herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Grant of Option.

1.1 The Company hereby grants to the Optionee the right and option (the “Option”) to purchase all or any part of an aggregate of
<<Options_Granted>> whole Shares subject to, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Plan.

1.2 The Option is not intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code.

1.3 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance and consistent with, and subject to, the provisions of the Plan (the provisions of which are
incorporated herein by reference) and, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the same definitions
as set forth in the Plan.

1.4 The Option is conditioned upon Optionee’s execution of this Agreement and the terms of the confidentiality, inventions, non-solicitation and
non-competition provisions attached to the Optionee’s Restricted Stock Award Agreement as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. If the Agreement
and the <<Date>> Retricted Stock Award (including Exhibit A) are not accepted by the Optionee in the manner and within the time period specified by the
Company, the Option may be canceled by the Committee.



2. Purchase Price.

The price at which the Optionee shall be entitled to purchase Shares upon the exercise of the Option shall be <<Option_Price>> per Share.

3. Duration of Option.

The Option shall be exercisable to the extent and in the manner provided herein for a period of ten (10) years from the Grant Date (the “Exercise
Term”); provided, however, that the Option may be earlier terminated as provided in Sections 1.4 and 6 hereof.

4. Vesting and Exercisability of Option.

The Option shall vest, and may be exercised, with respect to the Shares as set forth in the Optionee Statement attached hereto and made a part hereof,
subject to earlier termination of the Option as provided in Sections 1.4 and 6 hereof or in the Plan. The right to purchase the Shares as they become vested shall be
cumulative and shall continue during the Exercise Term unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

5. Manner of Exercise and Payment.

5.1 Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan, the Option may be exercised by either (i) delivery of written or electronic
notice to the Company, at its principal executive office or (ii) online notice given to an online broker with which the Company has made arrangement for the
exercise of employee stock options, which notice satisfies the form and conditions set forth in such arrangement, which shall be provided to the Grantee from
time to time. Such notice shall state that the Optionee is electing to exercise the Option and the number of Shares in respect of which the Option is being
exercised and, if delivered in writing to the Company, shall be signed by the person or persons exercising the Option. If requested by the Committee, such person
or persons shall (i) deliver this Agreement to the Secretary of the Company who shall endorse thereon a notation of such exercise and (ii) provide satisfactory
proof as to the right of such person or persons to exercise the Option.

5.2 The notice of exercise described in Section 5.1 shall be accompanied by the full purchase price for any Shares purchased pursuant to the exercise
of an Option and shall be paid in full upon such exercise, (i) in cash, by check, by transferring Shares to the Company, by attesting to the ownership of Shares,
upon such terms and conditions as may be acceptable to the Committee, or by net settlement of the Option in the manner determined by the Committee, or (ii) by
such arrangement as is made by the Company with the designated online broker. Any Shares the Optionee transfers to the Company or attests to owning as
payment of the purchase price under an Option shall be valued at their Fair Market Value on the day preceding the date of exercise of such Option.

5.3 Upon receipt of notice of exercise and full payment for the Shares in respect of which the Option is being exercised, the Company shall, subject
to Section 16 of the Plan, take such action as may be necessary to effect the transfer to the Optionee of the number of Shares as to which such exercise was
effective.
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5.4 The Optionee shall not be deemed to be the holder of, or to have any of the rights of a holder with respect to any Shares subject to the Option
until (i) the Option shall have been exercised pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and the Optionee shall have paid the full purchase price for the number of
Shares in respect of which the Option was exercised, (ii) the Company shall have issued and delivered the Shares to the Optionee, and (iii) the Optionee’s name
shall have been entered as a stockholder of record on the books of the Company, whereupon the Optionee shall have full voting and other ownership rights with
respect to such Shares.

6. Termination of Employment.
6.1 In General.

If the employment of the Optionee with the Company and its Subsidiaries shall terminate for any reason, other than for the reasons set forth
in Sections 6.2 and 7.2 below, the Option shall continue to be exercisable (to the extent the Option was vested and exercisable on the date of the Optionee’s
termination of employment) at any time within three (3) months after the date of such termination of employment, but in no event after the expiration of the
Exercise Term.

6.2 Termination of Employment Due to Death, Disability, or Retirement.

If the Optionee’s termination of employment is due to death, Disability, or Retirement (termination on or after age 65), or if Optionee
terminates employment after age 55, the following shall apply:

(@ Termination Due To Death. In the event the Optionee dies while actively employed, the Option shall become immediately and fully
exercisable, and shall remain exercisable at any time prior to the end of the Exercise Term, or for one (1) year after the date of death,
whichever period is shorter, by (A) a Permitted Transferee (as defined in Section 8 below), if any, or such person(s) that have acquired the
Optionee’s rights under such Options by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, or (B) if no such person described in (A) exists, the
Optionee’s estate or representative of the Optionee’s estate.

(b) Termination by Disability. In the event the employment of the Optionee is terminated by reason of Disability, the Option shall become
immediately and fully exercisable as of the date the Committee determines the Optionee terminated for Disability and shall remain
exercisable at any time prior to the end of the Exercise Term, or for one (1) year after the date of termination, whichever period is shorter.

(o) Termination by Retirement. In the event the employment of the Optionee is terminated by reason of Retirement, all outstanding unvested
Options shall expire, and any Options vested as of Optionee’s date of Retirement shall remain exercisable at any time prior to the end of the
Exercise Term, or for five (5) years after the date of termination, whichever period is shorter. In the event of the Optionee’s death after
Retirement, the vested Options shall be exercisable in accordance with this subsection (c) and the Option shall be exercisable by the persons
described in (a) above.
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(d) Termination After Attaining Age 55. If the Optionee terminates employment (other than as a result of death or Disability) after attaining age
55 but prior to age 65, all outstanding unvested Options shall expire, and any Options vested as of Optionee’s date of termination shall,
unless the Committee determines otherwise at the time of such termination, remain exercisable at any time prior to the end of the Exercise
Term, or for five (5) years after the date of termination, whichever period is shorter. In the event of the Optionee’s death after terminating
after age 55, the Option shall be exercisable in accordance with this subsection (d) and the Option shall be exercisable by the persons
described in (a) above.

7. Effect of Change in Control.

7.1 Notwithstanding anything contained to the contrary in this Agreement, in the event of a Change in Control, the Option shall become immediately
and fully exercisable, and the Committee, in its discretion, may terminate the Option, provided that at least 30 days prior to the Change in Control, the Committee
notifies the Optionee that the Option will be terminated and provides the Optionee, at the election of the Committee, (i) the right to receive immediately a cash
payment in an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (A) the greater of (x) the Fair Market Value on the date preceding the date of surrender, of the shares subject
to the Option or portion of the Option surrendered, or (y) the Adjusted Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to the Option or portion thereof surrendered, over
(B) the aggregate purchase price for such Shares under the Option; or (ii) the right to exercise all Options (including the Options vested as a result of the Change
in Control) immediately prior to the Change in Control.

7.2 If the Options remain outstanding after the Change in Control and if the employment of the Optionee is terminated within two (2) years
following a Change in Control, all vested Options shall continue to be exercisable at any time within five (5) years after the date of such termination of
employment, but in no event after expiration of the Exercise Term.

8. Transferability.

The Option shall not be transferable other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Option may be
transferred, in whole or in part, without consideration, by written instrument signed by the Optionee, to any members of the immediate family of the Optionee
(i-e., spouse, children, and grandchildren), any trusts for the benefit of such family members or any partnerships whose only partners are such family members
(the “Permitted Transferees”). Appropriate evidence of any such transfer to the Permitted Transferees shall be delivered to the Company at its principal executive
office. If all or part of the Option is transferred to a Permitted Transferee, the Permitted Transferee’s rights hereunder shall be subject to the same restrictions and
limitations with respect to the Option as the Optionee. During the lifetime of the Optionee, the Option shall be exercisable only by the Optionee, or if applicable,
by the Permitted Transferees.
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9. No Right to Continued Employment.

Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall be interpreted or construed to confer upon the Optionee any right with respect to continuance of
employment by the Company or a Subsidiary, nor shall this Agreement or the Plan interfere in any way with the right of the Company or a Subsidiary to
terminate the Optionee’s employment at any time.

10. Adjustments.

In the event of a Change in Capitalization, the Committee shall make appropriate adjustments to the number and class of Shares or other stock or
securities subject to the Option and the purchase price for such Shares or other stock or securities. The Committee’s adjustment shall be made in accordance with
the provisions of Section 10 of the Plan and shall be effective and final, binding, and conclusive for all purposes of the Plan and this Agreement.

11. Withholding of Taxes.

The Company shall have the right to deduct from any distribution of cash to the Optionee an amount equal to the federal, state, and local income
taxes and other amounts as may be required by law to be withheld (the “Withholding Taxes”) with respect to the Option. If the Optionee is entitled to receive
Shares upon exercise of the Option, the Optionee shall pay the Withholding Taxes to the Company in cash prior to the issuance of such Shares. In satisfaction of
the Withholding Taxes, the Optionee may make a written election (the “Tax Election”) to have withheld a portion of the Shares issuable to him or her upon
exercise of the Option, having an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the Withholding Taxes, provided that, if the Optionee may be subject to liability under
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the election must comply with the requirements applicable to Share transactions by such Optionees.

12. Employee Bound by the Plan.

The Optionee hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and agrees to be bound by all the terms and provisions thereof.

13. Modification of Agreement.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, suspended, or terminated, and any terms or conditions may be waived, but only by mutual agreement of
the parties in writing.

14. Severability.

Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected by such holding and shall continue in full force in accordance with their terms.

15. Governing Law.

The validity, interpretation, construction, and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Delaware without giving
effect to the conflicts of laws principles thereof.
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16. Successors in Interest.

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon each successor corporation. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the
Optionee’s legal representatives. All obligations imposed upon the Optionee and all rights granted to the Company under this Agreement shall be final, binding,
and conclusive upon the Optionee’s heirs, executors, Permitted Transferees, administrators, and successors.

17. Resolution of Disputes.

Any dispute or disagreement which may arise under, or as a result of, or in any way relate to, the interpretation, construction, or application of this
Agreement shall be determined by the Committee. Any determination made hereunder shall be final, binding, and conclusive on the Optionee and the Company
for all purposes.

ATTEST: ACUITY BRANDS, INC.
By:

C. Dan Smith Vernon J. Nagel

Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
GRANTEE:

<<First_Name>><<Middle_Name>><<Last_Name>>

—6—



OPTIONEE STATEMENT

<<FIRST_NAME>><<MIDDLE_NAME>><<LAST_NAME>>

Option Type: <<Option_Type>>
Grant Date: <<Grant_Date>>
Shares Granted: <<Shares_Granted>>
Vesting Dates:

Vest Date Shares Vesting
<<Shrs_Vest_1>> <<Date_Vest_1>>
<<Shrs_Vest_2>> <<Date_Vest_2>>
<<Shrs_Vest_3>> <<Date_Vest_3>>

Expiration Date: <<Expiration_Date>>



Exhibit 31(a)

I, Vernon J. Nagel, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Acuity Brands, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: April 8, 2009

/s/ Vernon J. Nagel

Vernon J. Nagel
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act has been provided to Acuity Brands, Inc. and will be retained by
Acuity Brands, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 31(b)

I, Richard K. Reece, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Acuity Brands, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: April 8, 2009

/s/ Richard K. Reece
Richard K. Reece
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act has been provided to Acuity Brands, Inc. and will be retained by
Acuity Brands, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32(a)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Acuity Brands, Inc. (the
“Corporation”) for the quarter ended February 28, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the
undersigned, the Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation.

/s/ Vernon J. Nagel

Vernon J. Nagel

Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
April 8, 2009

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Acuity Brands, Inc. and will be retained by Acuity Brands, Inc. and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32(b)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Acuity Brands, Inc. (the
“Corporation”) for the quarter ended February 28, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the
undersigned, the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation.

/s/ Richard K. Reece

Richard K. Reece
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
April 8, 2009

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Acuity Brands, Inc. and will be retained by Acuity Brands, Inc. and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



